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ingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
Tits subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles, beverages and instant food products in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The Group started its instant
noodle business in 1992, and expanded into the instant food business
and beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group further
expanded its beverage business by forming a strategic alliance with
PepsiCo for the beverage business in the PRC.The Company exclusively
manufactures, bottles, packages, distributes and sells PepsiCo non-
alcoholic drinks in the PRC. The Group's three main business segments
have established leading market shares in the PRC’s food industry.
According to AC Nielsen SCAN TRACK EXPRESS, based on sales volume,
year-to-date December 2015, the Group was the market leader in
instant noodles, ready-to-drink teas and egg rolls, having gained 46.5%,
55.4% and 15.4% market shares respectively. In bottled water and the
overall juice drink market, the Group gained 17.6% and 20.0% market
share respectively, ranked No. 2 in the market. According to Canadean
December 2015 data, based on sales volume, Pepsi carbonated drinks
had 28.8% market share and held a second position. After years of hard
work and accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the best
known brands among consumers in the PRC.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 606 sales offices and 73
warehouses serving 30,095 wholesalers and 116,036 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2015. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2015 was
US$79.5 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and a component stock of
Hong Kong's benchmark Hang Seng Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and circulation business, the Group
will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the PRC
with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant Food &
Beverage in the World".
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Production Centre i Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging Wuhan Xian Other Centres  Total

SEE R A M B BB EiE [ Hth a5

Instant Noodles 7 {EFASE 2 ' ' ' ' ' ' 16 23
Beverage MmEE i l l l l ?7 104

Instant Food FERREE m ;-r' 3 £

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

gE g2 = g £

Sales Office =ES3 555 571 566 582 606
Warehouse BE 91 95 75 77 73
Wholesaler Fagizts] 6,188 32,424 33,504 36,837 30,095
Direct Retailer BETED 86,755 107,131 110,355 118,359 116,036
Employee BTAH 64,309 79,419 80,541 79,003 69,622
Production Line EER 510 607 654 697 711
Production Centre HESM 65 108 119 129 132
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Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BET-A=t-HLEE

For the years ended 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
€ =21
(Restated)
FET FET FET FET FET
Us$’000 Us$000 us$ooo Us$°000 Us$000

Wz Revenue 9,102,810 10,237,982 10,940,996 9,211,852 7,866,580
BRI AR Profit before taxation 471,498 693,569 722,990 832,482 662,976
P Taxation (190,014) (208,820) (228,679) (227,763) (163,272)
AEZGEF Profit for the year 281,484 484,749 494,311 604,719 499,704
FEMRR T Profit attributable to:
/NG Owners of the Company 256,340 400,482 408,544 458,622 419,545
DEERBRE Non-controlling interests 25,144 84,267 85,767 146,097 80,159
REERF Profit for the year 281,484 484,749 494,311 604,719 499,704
5N Dividends 128,306 200,054 204,269 180,091 209,629
EJ ES e} ES e}
US cents US cents US cents US cents US cents
FRET Earnings per share
9N Basic 4,57 7.15 7.30 8.20 7.51
e Diluted 4.57 7.13 7.28 8.17 7.47

2015 Annual Report F§ 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+=RA=1+-H
As at 31 December

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(EF) (FE5)
(Restated) (Restated)

FET FET FET FET FET

Us$‘000 Us$°000 US$°000 Us$'000 Us$000

KREUREE Investment properties 154,498 — — — —
mE - EEREE Property, plant and equipment 5,396,574 5,859,905 5,485,100 5,001,736 4,029,872
THELRE Prepaid lease payments 607,822 737,387 318,961 284,040 186,276
/Nl Interests in associates 30,065 31,973 29,050 21,324 —
BENEER Interests in joint ventures 82,741 74,153 80,276 63,114 —
BV EE Intangible asset 26,551 27,305 28,058 28,811 —
HiFEREEE Other non-current assets 156,522 132,061 72,788 105,806 156,598
FRBEE Net current liabilities (960,357)  (1,293,211)  (1,215,366) (826,079) (991,942)
FRBARE Non-current liabilities (1,600,155)  (1,473,909) (872,480) (1,189,567 (714,204)
FEE Net assets 3,894,261 4,095,664 3,926,387 3,489,185 2,666,600
BT Issued capital 28,014 28,019 27,982 27,964 27,951
& Reserves 2,881,045 3,005,538 2,852,310 2,516,186 2,056,198
DHRF R Non-controlling interests 985,202 1,062,107 1,046,095 945,035 582,451
IR g5 Total equity 3,894,261 4,095,664 3,926,387 3,489,185 2,666,600

et t=13EMRAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Chairman Statement
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Over the past 25 years, along with the open up and growth of the PRC
market, the Group's scale of operation has grown rapidly. In order to
face the dramatic change in the future market environment, we have
established an operational management model based on a professional
team. | request that all the fellows to face this turning point of operation
and management handover with open-minded, and they should enhance
their skills and innovative ability with rapid respond to changes, so as
to promote our transformation and improving, be well-prepared for
succession, as well as promote the future source of growth. The Board
and |, as the backup force of the Group, will continue to fully support
our operation team to face challenges from the new generation, as well
as achieve growth momentum and good result again.

The Group shall not only continues its attitude of good faith,
pragmatism, and innovative and provides the mass consumers
with better food, but also pay more attention to corporate social
responsibility, especially the implementation of food safety management,
the leading of industrial upgrade, and energy conservation and emission
reduction. | expect that consumers, employees, and shareholders can
continue to support Master Kong and work together toward a broader
and longer future.

In 2015 the Group’ s revenue was US$9.103 billion. Profit attributable
to owners of the Company was US$256 million and earnings per share
was US4.57 cents. The board will recommend the payment of a final
dividend of US2.29 cents per share. Total amount of final dividend for
the year 2015 will be US$128 million.

In the challenging 2015, our staff members strictly adhered to their
duties and dedication to work. Such all-round dedication makes me
confident that, working together, we will achieve our vision.l would
express my appreciation to our fellow directors and all staff members
for upholding their belief in perseverance, and grow with the Group
together.

Wei Ing-Chou
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
22 March 2016
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Group Structure
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Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd.
BEELERRBV)ERAHE

100%

e

Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment (China) Co.,

EMESEERR (TE) ARAR
100%

“

Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd.
RS BV)ERAR

0%

|

Master Kong Instant Foods Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
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aster Kong [Chongging] Convenient Food Co.,
B (EE) SERRERAF

Lud.

Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.*
BHERRRERAR

Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd.
RREERRERAT
100%

100% 75% 25%
p: ;
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Xinjiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd.
EFRBRRERAR FARBRBERAT RNREREHRAR
100% 5% 25% 100%
. . n '
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient Food Co., Ltd.
BRE&RRARAE Bl GEB) FEARRERAT
100% 75% 25%
— p
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
EREERRARAA BREZRAARAT
100% 5% 25%
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Hangtzhou Tingi Food Co., Ltd.
RNEERRERDF MESZERERAF
100% 169.4% 30.6%

Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
BEaRHAARAF
100%

‘Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
REESRRAERAT
100%

Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
BERRERRARAR
100%

EEE (BH) SERRERAF
100%

Master Kong (Kunming) Convenient Food Co., Ltd.*

Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
REESRRERAT
100%

Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
FRERRRERAH
100%

L N N N N N

Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
BNESRRARAT
100%

CIC<VCI$INNININNNCT

Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd.
ENERRBERAE
100%

Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd.
B (XF) RRERAF
100%

‘Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
RER2REERAT
100%

Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd.
BT (M) BMRERAT

00%

Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
WNERRAERAF
100%

Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
BNRERAERAT
100%

Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd.
B (FS) RRAERAR
100%

Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.*
BRRRERAERAF
100%

Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
EREERRARAF
100%

Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
BNERRRERAT
100%

Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd.
Bl (AR) RRARAF
10

0%

Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
EREERAAERAA
100%

Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
MMNERRRERAT
100%

Guangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
ENERRRERAT
100%

Chongqing Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.*
EERERRARAH
100%

Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
BEREEARARAF
100%

et t=13EMRAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
EEEERERAT

Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. Tingyi (BVI) INT'L Co., Ltd.

Efi{E 8 mBV)ERAR
90.5%
|

Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.

EMEREERERAR
52.5%

Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Lid.

EEERRERE (TE) ERAE
100%

Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
RBEEREERAF
100%

Master Kong (Wulumugi) Beverage Co., Ltd.*

ﬂ%ﬁ(%&*%)ﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁ
1

00%

Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
MERRRBHERAF
100%

Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
BRERRRERAF
100%

Suzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
BNEZRRERAF
100%

Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
RREEZRRERAF
100%

Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.
G RERBERAR
100%

China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited
HEEKLK (F8) BRAR
100%

Pepsico Investment (China) Limited
BE (FE) REFRAF
100%

PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Ltd.
BERE (EMN) SRAR
100%

Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
ENEEARKBERAF
100%

Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
RYOBBARKBERAT
100%

Shenyang Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
EBAEARKBERAF
100%

Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
BNEEARKBERAF
100%

Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
RYBEARKBERAT
100%

0%

Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
REREARKBERAF
88%

Chonggqing Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Co., Ltd.

BEEREXARHERAR
94.4%

Chengdu PepsiCo Beverage Co., Ltd.
RBEERBERAT
70%

Lanzhou Pepsi Beverage Co., Ltd.
BMNEERBERAT
100%

Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
tﬁﬁgﬁgﬁﬂﬁmﬂﬁ
lo

Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
EEEULRBERAT
57.5%

it (KMEXS) BRERARE
100%

China Dingya Holding Limited
HEEREZRERAT
100%

[ Wealth City Investment Limited

EHBRABRAF
100%

[Shangha.i Jingiu Minghao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

LRERERFHEFRAF
100%

bbb

Tingtong (BVI) Limited
EEBV)ERAT
100%

Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
EE (F25) ZRERAT
50.01%

Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd.
EEEENRERAE
100%

Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd.
REREEATRAA —
100%

Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited
BERE (B8) ARAF —
.

0%

Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited
REAESETRRBERAT
100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Amid the overall PRC environment has been stepped into the New
Normal, the 2015 objectives of the Group had been below expectation.
It was mainly caused by the objectives of a decline in instant noodles
sales due to the price increase for quality upgrade has resulted in the
sales channel taking a wait and see stance. During the year, overall
Ready-To-Drink (“RTD") tea market was not good. The Group’s RTD
sales decreased though the market share of RTD tea had not dropped.
In addition, the market share of bottled water decreased because we
had not grasped timely the situation of the rise of the expansion of the
market of bottled water at medium prices. As a result, the objective to
activate asset utilization ratio was not satisfactory.
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The Group started the change and succession of operation management

in 2015 while passed through the progress of change in economic

environment under the New Normal. Except for insisting in established

operation strategic direction of the Group, we also focused in

constantly control capital expenditure at the business management

level, unswervingly leaded the industry upgrade, performed product

innovation and upgrade and leveraged the opportunity of expanding

urbanization of third and fourth tier cities, in order to improve capacity

utilization rate and expect to achieve the target of efficiency enhancing.

The details for the strategic goal of the Group which focus on “security,

cost saving, efficiency enhancing and innovation”are shown as below:

1.

Cash is king, steady management, risk management of continuous
optimizing financial control and financial safety; strengthening
asset utilization rate, effectively management of capital
expenditure and optimizing our management of free cash flow;

Implementing overall food safety policy and tracing system,
reinforcing system of food safety center;

Performing product innovation and upgrade: providing extensive
customers series of product with rich, quality and comprehensive
price; and accelerating product innovation and increasing
branding investment through co-operation with international
strategic alliance partners and establishment of innovative research
& development center;

Responding to the demand in the change of the market
environment and succession, improving training of heads and
entry level employees and introduction of new management tools.
Except for improving management ability of modern channel,
we also leverage on strengthening the utilization of information
system in the management of traditional channel for sales, in
order to achieve flexible operation of focus on front-line and
simplified management.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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In 2015, the Group’ s revenue was US$9,102.810 million, a decrease
of 11.09% compared to that of 2014. Revenue of instant noodle and
beverages dropped by 12.69% and 9.60% respectively. During the
year, the Group’ s gross margin increased by 1.40 ppt. to 31.86% year-
on-year, benefiting from the drop in cost of the main raw materials
and refining operations in production. In 2015, the Group controlled
operating expenses, as a result, distribution costs as a percentage
of total revenue decreased by 0.19 ppt. to 20.70% as compared to
20.89% in 2014. Other operating expenses increased by US$156.276
million was mainly due to the increase in (1) depreciation of idle
assets, (2) impairment loss of machineries and (3) losses caused by the
fluctuation in exchange rates. In 2015, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) was US$1,038.576 million and
the profit attributable to owners of the Company was US$256.340
million, a decrease by 9.64% and 35.99% respectively when compared
with the previous year, earnings per share was US4.57 cents, a drop of
US2.58 cents year-on-year.
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INSTANT NOODLE BUSINESS

According to the latest data for 2015 shown by Nielsen, the overall
sales volume in the instant noodle market declined by 6.3%, while the
sale amount dropped by 2.6%. The Group’s instant noodle business
had 55.4% market share in terms of sales value for 2015. In 2015,
the Group’s revenue for the instant noodle business amounted to
US$3,612.742 million, a decrease by 12.69% from the previous year,
and represented 39.69% of the Group’ s total revenue. Benefited
from the low level of palm oil price and other material prices remained
stable during the period, as a result, gross margin for the instant noodle
business for the year increased by 1.79 ppt. to 30.12%. The profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the instant noodle
business was US$$273.922 million, dropped by 23.99% when compared
to the same period last year. The profit declined mainly due to the price
increase for quality upgrade in the fourth quarter has resulted in the
sales channel taking a wait and see stance.

In the context of various trends, including the rise of the middle class,
the increasing concern about health and food safety by Chinese
consumers. Master Kong, as a leading brand in the industry, shouldered
the responsibility to guide the development of the category market
and actively responded to environmental changes. Hence, in order
to gradually promote the long-term and healthy development of the
category, the Group had made several major initiatives, including:

1. Comprehensive upgrading its products in many aspects including
ingredients, soups, and packaging, gradually leading the category
out of the cheap product positioning, and meeting the increasing

demand of consumers in product quality :
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2. Strengthening investment in brand building and meeting
customers’ demand in functions and value of the category so as
to reverse the impression in the eyes of consumers of the entire
category :

3. Continuing to educate customers vividly of food safety to re-
establish their confidence in the overall category of instant
noodles.

In seeking long-term development, Master Kong had took a number of
initiatives to consolidate and improve its current performance:

High-end Noodles

“Master Kong Braised Beef Instant Noodle”: We had comprehensively
upgraded it inside and outside, and enriched the new launch
specifications of Spiced Egg to meet consumers’ demand for high-end
products. We continued to advocate “Persisting in Dreams, Supporting
You All the Way"”. We had contracted with both TFBOYS, a hot new-
generation boy group, and Yu Quan as our brand spokesmen to
combine the slogan of Braised Beef Brand with youngsters who fight for
their dreams through entertaining content marketing so as to make our

brand younger and more fashionable.

“Master Kong Pickled Mustard Series”: We continued to communicate
with young consumers in an entertaining manner. Meanwhile, we had
cooperated with Oriental DreamWorks Kung Fu Panda 3 to make The
Kung Fu of Noodle, a video introducing the fine techniques of Pickled

Mustard Series and held a special promotional activity, Kung Fu Treasure

Tokens, to recover market share.

2015 Annual Report F
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Master Kong Spicy Series: Our personnel for Spicy Beef/Fried Pepper
Beef/Pickled Pepper Beef/Pungent Beef had worked together with the
director and actors of Love Apartment, a popular TV drama series, to
shot a micro film, Spicy Hero, which gained more than 300 million views
on the video and continued to enhance the brand vitality.

We continued to expand the series of delicious soup. We gradually
launched the strong and light taste products, including Pork Rib Noodle
and Seafood Noodle of “light taste” and Seafood Pork Rib Noodle and
Pickle Pork Rib Noodle of “strong taste”. Our research and development
also extend the taste innovation and exposure planning to meet the
various demands of customers. “Noodles with Gravy” catered to the
diet demand of “health & balance”. We cooperated with Jung Da Yeon,
Asian Bodybuilding Exercise Queen, to open “Balance Classroom”
online, while we held offline activities in major cities and interacted with
customers through the philosophy of life of “Balanced Diet, Exercise to
be Healthier!”

The release of the creative video, Fried Noodle Combo Together for
Seven Lives, not only successfully shared consumers to develop new
methods of eating, but also won a gold prize of the category of brand
content and entertainment of 2015 Spikes Asia Award.

“Fresh Banquet”, a high-end brand tailored made for the new middle
class through the efforts of eight years. The activity was specially held
through public relation to create topics to attract the attention of the
white-collar workers on dining out which would then be transformed
into the attention and recognition on “Fresh Banquet”, healthy,
delicious, and low burden. The first attempt rate and repurchase rate
had been increased significantly. We are now working on the expansion
of business districts to meet the demands of customers.
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“Plenty Fine Ingredients”, a new product, launched in February, mainly
meet the demands of young consumers like students and white-collar
workers of cup noodles in small volume and with fine quality. The
product concentrated on “rich and exquisite ingredients, light and
right amount of noodle, exquisite and fashionable cup” to develop the
high-end cup noodle market. We had held a transboundary fashion
conference with Femina, a fashion magazine, to bring about fashionable
elements to the brand and make “Plenty Fine Ingredients” the fashion
spokesperson for the instant noodle industry.

“Master Soup”, one of our high-end products, was launched in
February with the selling points of delicious soup without MSG to attract
the attention of high-income groups and gained extensive attention
through the topic discussion online of “Cannot Resist the Thick Soup
Noodle” in October.

Mid-end Noodles/Snack Noodles

The mid-end noodles of Master Kong maintained a stable and leading
position in sales in the market according to Nielsen. The ingredients of
“Happy Treasure” had been enriched and upgraded to meet high-end
and affordable demand. The amount of “Super Blessing” had been
increased to gain the market of products at a mid-end price and with
a big volume. We launched a new flavor of “Fantastic” and raised its
awareness through TV ads. Through special promotional activities to
enhance brand penetration. We had expanded business districts of RMB
1 “Xiang Bao Cui” which had increase in its stable sales and shared
the traditional snack noodle market of high prices. Direct/e-commerce
channels with multiple specifications were adopted for “Cui Xuan
Feng”, coupled with online special promotional activities to enhance its
brand vitality.

17



il

EE5mEE 2 4T | Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEREETH  TERETEXS
HBRSCETT  REEH BN -
PR ABRBERT - TEBLHIE B
mE  EIEE FNREEREN- T
W% - SR MBEERN - RIEN L
T e & - RIERZMZ - LB
RER  RAGEER - EPEERGH
R A B REMBEGRE  HERNIBE -

EEEEETE - REURR K B
BTt ZRBBHMETAYRCRHERD
BB DT - BCBER RS -

W FENIRA

As of supply chain management, we had improved the systematic
operation of the mechanism of estimation, sales, order, and production
and improved the effectiveness of the coordination of production and
sales. Staff skills had been upgraded. Processes had been constantly
optimized to stabilize quality. And we had focused on the increase of
product gross profit. The production technologies for new product
categories had been actively developed and introduced to prepare well
for the successful launch of new products. The new second-generation
plants gradually went into production with new equipment and
standardized operation to provide consumers with products of higher
quality. Food safety check and traceability management had been
strengthen to enhance corporate image. The project of robots at the
site of production, energy conservation, and emission reduction were
promoted to save costs.

In terms of channel management, we shall work on digitalization of
access in the era of big data, take advantage of mobile access and sale
tools, deepen the analysis of the data of dealer, and optimize access
benefits.

18
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BEVERAGE BUSINESS

According to Nielsen 2015 research data, the RTD tea (including milk
tea) of the Group accounted for 55.4% of the sales volume in the
market, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.50 ppt. and ranked
the first in the market steadily. The market share of bottled water was
17.6%, ranked the second. Juice drinks accounted for 20% of market
share, ranked the second. According to Canadean’s data on the sales
volume from January to December in 2015, the market share of the
Group's carbonated drinks accounted for 28.8%, wherein, cola flavor
and fruit flavor carbonated drinks were 46.2% and 35.0% respectively.

In 2015, revenue for the beverage business decreased by 9.60% to
US$5,244.232 million year on year, representing 57.61% of the Group’s
total revenue. The revenue decline mainly due to the slow down in
bottled water and juice sales. Gross margin of beverage business
increased by 1.26 ppt. to 33.18% because of the decrease in costs of
raw materials such as PET resin and refining operations in production.
Confronted with such environment, we have controlled distribution
costs. During the year, the increase in other operating expense had
negative impacts on profit. It was mainly due to the increase in (1)
depreciation of idle assets, (2) impairment loss of machineries and (3)
losses caused by fluctuation in exchange rates. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company from the beverage business was US$17.639
million, a year-on-year dropped by 75.49%.

19



EEEFIMEE DM | Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI FEXERRENEMBERE - REE
BIERZC B G b i B 58 RS K T e s B
M - INEEIRER AR G T 5 2 B MR B
SRACRIF - EFRMBBABHE  BESK
R L) - ARRBUATRIEAZE

R

N

20

BRI AR -

BORBENREA - SEANBAKHE
TRNEBIEREEN O WE
BAFE G 7 SR RIS ERIE A A IE 1R o

BERKEME 2 KEEERE &1L
ARUBERRENKEEE BB
FE §5 195 S8 VR SR B L B IR S ED
BEES  BRERFHEALZEDNR
SNETFR AL

RAFMELBEHERRE R
M e BER AR ARERE
A o

EEHETRERLZERBARE Rt

76 REE TRE#E1S022000 (B M

TE2EBEARE)  FSSC22000
(RMEZEREERFE) HACCP(BE

DITEBRIE D) R RRE - A
REIHNEEEERKFMERE
ENEIEREE  FEBECHR
B EHBEEBNRE BOR
DARFBETR : ARHESS
RBEBRKRRE RAEMEEZH
BRIZR °

Our beverage business adopts a primary product focusing policy, except

for consolidating the leading position of RTD tea and strengthening

communication and market share of bottled water brand, but also

concentrating in deeply expanding market presence in carbonated

soft drink market; The Group also will strengthen innovation, working

together with strategic alliance partners, improving the operation ability
of high-end drinks, while adopting the following strategies to grasp the
business opportunities of economic transformation in the future:

1.

Being committed to enhancing brand power and combining NBA
and Disney to create brand vitality: emphasizing the extension of
drinking time and occasions for brands and product.

Operation management of precise channel and business districts,
enhancing investment management of modern channel;
optimizing reasonable adjustment in channel inventory through
production and marketing co-ordination and operation system, in
order to achieve healthy sales and rationalization of internal and
external inventory.

Enhancing the synergies of Master Kong and Pepsi supply chains,
giving full play of the synergy of Master Kong & Pepsi to reduce
manufacturing costs.

Food safety system certification had been fully implemented for
the beverage business. A total of 76 production plants had passed
the certification of 1S022000 (Food Safety Management System
Certification), FSSC22000 (Food Safety System Certification),
and HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point) and
implemented food safety traceability. And to ensure that the
quality management and product quality of the plants can meet
international standards and provide satisfactory and reassuring
drinks to customers. Promoting brand image, while promoting
international image of quality products through continuous
rationalization of international certification.
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RTD Tea

The cooperation with NBA formed the image of sports and fashion
of the “Ice Tea"” series which met customers’ drinking demand for
different timing by more specifications. Green tea grasped trends firmly
to seize the young consumer group. Jasmine series continued the theme
of romance, combined movies to activate the brand, and attracted
young customers with new products of jasmine and fruit tea of multi-
layered tastes. Adhering to professional requirements, the Group had
endeavored to make Original Flavor Tea House the same as fresh tea to
meet customers’ high-end, healthy, and personalized demands. Lipton
launched fruit tea with classic English tea style. The sales amount of
Lipton in China went up to a new peak in 2015.

Bottled Water

Master Kong Elegance and Pleasure series are quality drinking water
with “Superior Quality, International Certification”. The quality of Pure
Joy of Water had been enhanced comprehensively. Based on the dense
production sites of Master Kong, it had given full play of scale synergy
to quickly meet the various needs of channel customers.

Carbonated Drinks

The activities of “Bring Joy Home"” and “Pepsi Challenge” of Pepsi-Cola
and the new brand image of “Happy Pet” advocating “Mixing FUN in
Happy Ways" of Mirinda found favor in young people’s eyes. Apart
from the promotion activities of various brands, which enhanced the
interactive experiences and participation of consumption.

21



8t

FEENBRTEBZ RS REHEETR
BEOKAFT R ZEBESTCEE
FEMSGHE - KESHUNEES 4]
REBRR UHEARWBRIL BEBER
BEEHMEM MEBRERNHOKLE
W RE2RREER - EREH D - £
MERAERH QK - REOHEAR
N EBHHORFE R - W FEHEE -

M EZKmENRA EER+ERR]
=IRES  2BAREHE - TH0KK
BB maRInkEL  aFRa%
ERFBNEML  RAERARKREAFTH
CAEBRENISOE - EEEE2H—
KEEEY  AEERER - FERK
BEXREPHHF M

A&

FAPE TR 2 1 w0 FLBR B AR 2R % 8
R BRIPFE R - M HEER
B @i ZEANTR - tbsMEL —Z
BRI AMEHBEEREXK  T28
EORR - LHEEDHRBRULELITR
FRE#

BUFTIT S P L 2 AN - EERBERRIR
HEEAZCEE  BREZEBERTR
Ry - MBS RMER - HEE
AWM EHRE REEM - PETH
B RERXBERRNEBRZAERE
BB AESE AR -

22

EEENWE DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

Juice Drinks

Master Kong's juice drinks have multiple specifications to meet
consumers’ drinking demand for different timing, grasped the urbanized
cities sales. Rock Candy Pear communicated with customers through
the theme of “Moist for Every Second” and with several specifications.
We repositioned Light Fruit and launched a new flavor of lemon which
resulted in fast growth of performance. The new flavor of lemon with
fruit grain for Tropicana had been upgraded with unique blended style
to attract young consumers.

Vitamin Drinks

Master Kong quickly distributed a new vitamin beverage “Natural
Vitality” with natural vitamin and lutein nationwide, mainly targeting at
customers of the 90s. The launch of “Vitamin Power”, a creative vitamin
drink, engaged Lee Minho, a Korean hit star as the spokesman, which
facilitated the quick gain of market share. The activity of “One Shot,
One Million” of Gatorade brought about a great upsurge in sports and
remained the top sports drinks.

Milk Drinks

The Group join hands with Weichuan to produce Pro-biotic Drinks had
broken through the restrictions of cold chains and boasted exclusive LPF
bacteria formula to meet consumers’ healthy, high-end, and diversified
demands. Also, we had introduced One Second Fresh Milk Tea to meet
customers’ demand for good tea without the burden of calorie and
promoted hot tea drinks in winter.

R&D Center had been established to focus on the study of key raw
materials and technology development and actively master the
technologies of key and new materials, such as the patent for the raw
materials of new tea, new packaging, and process technology. It had
made excellent achievement in terms of the development, certification,
and introduction of caps, aluminum foil packaging materials, PET bottle
labels, high translucent shrinkage films, and glass bottles.
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INSTANT FOOD BUSINESS

According to Nielsen, in terms of sales value, the market share of Master
Kong's egg rolls in 2015 accounted for 19.4%, ranked the first in the
market followed by sandwich crackers accounting for 12.5%.

In 2015, revenue of the instant food business amounted to US$136.855
million, representing a drop of 23.43% year-on-year, and 1.50% of
the Group’ s total revenue. Gross margin dropped by 2.35 ppt. to
33.83% mainly due to the sales decline from the bakery business and
the low utilization rate. In addition, owing to the investment loss for the
new product development of new business, the instant food business
recorded a loss of US$21.368 million.

In response to the above business environment, we combined the
features of being diversified and small to build a flexible business
development model and rapidly response to market changes. Below are
the major initiatives that had been made:

1. Focusing on popular products, such as cakes and snacks,
capitalizing on upgrade and innovation such as the diversification
of product specification and high end presentation, and increasing
market share.

2. Changing business model and business cooperation model and
promoting organizational reform in order to share resources and
enhance synergy.
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3. Integrating and checking dealers, improving the management
skills of business representatives, and continuously optimizing
distribution system.

4. Increasing the flexibility of supply chain and integrating resources
to reduce operating costs and increase supply elasticity and gross
margin.

As of Master Kong 3+2 sandwich crackers, in response to the new
business situation and in order to meet customers’ demand of small
volume, various choices, and multi-frequency, 3+2 sharing package and
display box had been launched at e-commerce and convenience stores.
In order to meet customers’ demand of high-end and exquisite cakes,
Master Kong Muffin French Cake had been upgraded. Meanwhile, the
cooperation with other industry had been carried out by combining
Muffin and Teddy Bear. In December, a limited edition of gift package
of Muffin and Teddy Bear had been launched. As of Master Kong egg
rolls, in order to meet customers’ demand of gift giving and high-end
products, combined with the tea resources of the Group, a new product
of egg roll and tea gift package had been launched in December.

In addition, in terms of organization operation, the special project
of organizational optimization had been completed by the end of
2015. We will continue to integrate and optimize the organization to
concentrate resources more on the core cake business, simplify the
operation processes of each business department, and strengthen
the human resources of the organization in order to give full play of
resources sharing, cost saving, and efficiency saving.
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FINANCING

The Group continued to maintain a stable and healthy financial structure
through effective control of trade receivables, trade payables, bank
balances and cash and inventories in 2015. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group’ s cash and bank deposits totaled US$1,023.700 million, a
decrease of US$159.403 million from 31 December 2014. A sufficient
amount of cash holding was still maintained. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group' s total assets and total liabilities amounted to approximately
US$8,481.506 million and US$4,587.245 million respectively. This
showed decreases in US$724.551 million and US$523.148 million
respectively compared to 31 December 2014. The debt ratio decreased
by 1.42 ppt. to 54.09% compared to 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’ s total interest bearing borrowings
decreased by US$179.189 million to US$2,449.565 million when
compared to 31 December 2014. The borrowings were mainly used for
capital expenditure on production facilities and general working capital.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’ s proportion of the total
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi were 79%
and 21% respectively, as compared to 82% and 18% respectively as
at 31 December 2014. The proportion between the Group’ s long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings was 54% and 46% respectively,
as compared to 47% and 53% respectively as at 31 December 2014.
Considered the diverged trends of the interest rates between Renminbi
and the US dollars and the Group itself, the Group has adjusted its
financing strategy since September to increase its proportion of onshore
financing and to reduce its foreign currencies financing. The Group
expects to increase its Renminbi borrowing, and the proportion of
Renminbi borrowing of the Group’ s total borrowings will be increased
gradually.

On 6 August 2015, the Company issued notes with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1 billion (“Note”). The issue price of the Note
was 99.656% of the principal amount of the Note. The Note shall bear
interest of 4.375% per annum from 6 August 2015, which will be paid
once a year on 6 August. The Note shall expire on 6 August 2018. The
Note is an unsecured debt of the Company. The primary objectives
for the Group to issue Reminbi Note overseas was to refinance certain
existing indebtedness and for general corporate used. The Group would
also capitalize on the good credit rating to enhance the weighting of
direct financing so as to secure a stable source of financing.
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During the year, the depreciation in Renminbi against US dollar by
4.75%, together with the fluctuation of exchange rate in Euro against
US dollar, brought realized/unrealised losses of US$56.145 million in the
Group’ s income statement.

In 2014, the Group announced a voluntary retirement plan (the “Plan”)
for its employees as a result of an integration programme with its Pepsi
beverage business. The Group has made an offer of the Plan to the
affected employees who can decide to accept the offer of benefits in
exchange for the termination of their employments. The termination
benefits of US$42.721 million have been recognised as expenses
during the year ended 31 December 2015. At 31 December 2015,
the estimated possible obligation of termination benefits amounted to
approximately US$31.279 million in 2016 (2014: US$70 million between
2015 and 2016).

The joint ventures and associates in the Pepsi beverage business of
the Group (the “Joint Ventures and Associates”) have, based on their
own operation requirements, also implemented a compensation plan
(the “Compensation Plan”) which is similar to the Plan. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has committed for the
payment of US$22.735 million arising from the Compensation Plan and
such payment has been recognized as expenses by the Group. At 31
December 2015, the possible amount of liabilities which arising from
the Compensation Plan but not yet committed by the Group amounted
to approximately US$18.265 million.

The financial ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Bt %= Financial Ratio

BE12A3181k

For the year ended
31 December

20155 20144
LR n [R5 2 Finished goods turnover 10.87 Days/ A 11.73Days/H
JRE 5 B X B 8 A Trade receivables turnover 9.46 Days/H 8.89 Days/H
mENLL 2 Current ratio 0.68 Times/f&  0.64 Times/f&

FEEHEEARLE CFHEEHEER Gearing ratio (Net debt to equity

ARBIRRESE LX)
BELE (RaERYRNEEE)
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attributable to owners of the Company)
Debt ratio (Total liabilities to total assets)

0.48 Times/f&
55.51%

0.49 Times/{%
54.09%
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2015, the Group had 69,622 employees. Located at
W Square in Shanghai at the beginning of 2015, the Group upheld the
concept of new landmark, new step, and new thinking, practiced the
corporate culture of prospect, performance, science, and harmony, and
continued to hold the development of strategic talents as the primary
goal of HR.

We had introduced international talent management tools, deepened
the cultivation and development of core talents, and established
a team of successors. We inherited internal experiences and skills
through action learning and project training while engaging external
agencies to convey advanced management concepts and learning from
benchmark enterprises so as to provide the competitive edge of core
talents for the sustainable operation of the Group. Meanwhile, we had
introduced high-quality talents in the industry, promoted internal talents
nationwide, established long-term cooperative relationships with key
universities at home and abroad, and carried out the personnel system
of management trainee to improve the mechanism of talent reservation
for various levels.

In addition, we had implemented the culture of performance,
strengthened the quantitative management of performance target,
and improved the performance management system which closely
integrated KPI and reward incentive mechanism to enhance the Group's

management performance.

2015 Annual Report £3§
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FOOD SAFETY

In 2015, Master Kong's Innovation R&D Center and Food Safety Center
in Shanghai with an area of 2,000 m? was launched. As the center
is fully equipped with the industry’s top precision equipment with a
total investment exceeding a monitoring system of 1,500 inspection
indicators, the comprehensive strength of Master Kong's huge world-
class inspection mechanism has reached internationally advanced level in
the industry in terms of both software and hardware. Our quality control
keeps abreast of food safety issues at home and abroad and front-end
scientific research information and we proactively launches sampling
and directional screening tests which prioritize key raw material risks.
Besides constantly updating in-house technical points of food safety,
we also take part in formulation of relevant national regulations and
standards with reference to scientific findings. Externally, we select
outstanding partners in the field such as multinational brands and well-
known research institutes to form strong strategic alliances for project
cooperation, enhancement in product safety and prospective prevention-
oriented studies on critical raw materials. In respect of product
development stage, we introduced the “food safety access” system

"

and “product lifecycle management (PLM) “ information management
system to monitor major food safety items from regulatory, risk survey

and prospective research perspectives. Our food safety control has been

broadened to cover product design process.

FHZETERALEFE-—FETREE

Top Ten Enterprises in the Year from 13th China Food Safety

Annual Conference
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TERRIEFEE -—SER
China Food Enterprises Benchmarking
Golden Chopsticks Award
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Prospects

2015 witnessed Master Kong's adaption to environment and positive
changes. Master Kong had been included in the list of the World’s Most
Innovative Enterprises 2015 by Forbes and received the rewards related
to innovation and food safety include the “China Food Enterprise
Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award” from the Sixth China Food
Safety Senior Management Dialogue 2015, which continued to prove
the domestic and foreign recognition and affirmation for the sustainable
performance of Master Kong. Meanwhile, we continued to promote
the strength and intensity of product innovation. These efforts have
repeatedly proved that Master Kong can not only embrace challenges
with an open mind and face adversities bravely, but also move forward
at a steady pace to keep up with consumers, markets, and the world.

Looking into the future, “sustainability” is not only the Group's vision
but also its core thinking and competitiveness in terms of operation
and development. In the face of the new normal market environment,
we prepare based on accumulated strengths, continue to build and
complete resources incubators and the cradle for talent management
which will serve as the solid foundation to cater for the rapid changing
environment and the long-term planning for sustainable development.
At the same time, the Group shall be more stable in financial
management and control and planning. In particular, it will focus on
the management of capital expenditure and health free cash flow,
prepare fund conversation and asset management well to conform to
the macro-trend, and give full play of the established brand and supply
chain assets. Shanghai Disneyland is about to open in June 2016. Master
Kong and Pepsi, as its strategic partners, will continue to plan unique
and influential marketing activities and expect Chinese tea culture
will be witnessed by customers from all over the world in Shanghai
Disneyland and promoted internationally. In 2016, we will continue to
uphold the concept of respect for consumers, take more productive and
innovative initiatives, introduce external resources, strengthen channel
innovation, and promote the healthy development of the company.
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In terms of the instant noodle business, we will not only firmly promote
product upgrading and lead healthy development of the industry.
Not only investing resources in product innovation for respond to
rapid change of environment and consumers; but also continuing to
emphasize brand investment, promoting image of brand rejuvenation,
and considering every consumer groups by offering different product
portfolios. In 2016, we will launch the “strong taste “series which focus
on taste innovation. The Group will continue to increase investment on
brand building and make the brand more youthful. And to cater for
the demands of different consumer groups through various product
portfolios. We are convinced that as long as we can cater for the
concerns of customer groups at all levels, we can gain the final support
from channels and customers. The beverage business will continue to
fixate on operation and innovation of core products, which is expected
to launch various new products in 2016 for satisfying demand of
consumers of diversified tastes for healthy and high-ended products.
And to give full play of the synergy of Master Kong & Pepsi supply
chain, optimize production costs, strictly control product quality, and
increase operational efficiency. By the construction of plants and the
adjustment of production lines, we will speed up the optimization
of production equipment and the improvement of warehousing and
distribution and give full play of scale synergy to reduce procurement
and manufacturing costs so as to continue to promote a more efficient
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operation system. Meanwhile, we also continue to optimize service and
management of channel, and continue to deeply develop each business
districts leveraging on distributors for improving turnover of product and
sales; and also insist in continue to begin skill enhancing of staff and
talent training for providing the most professional and premium service.
As of instant food business, we uphold the principle of steady operation,
follow the business model of light assets, further activate fixed assets.
At the same time through the co-operative business planning for new
business, re-focus the core product management, and leveraging
resources in cooperation with international partners, effectively leverage
on all kinds of strengths to create new business opportunity in order
to effectively achieve operation performance. The Group will continue
to strengthen the construction of food safety system and reinforce
traceability management through internal and external audit and control
mechanisms to ensure good quality of products.

Looking ahead, the industry and its environment is under rapidly
change. We must keep flexible action plans, shrewd business judgment,
and long-term planning, management, and control in order to be ready
to make the best decisions. Master Kong promises to adhere to the most
strict self-requirements and standards and take more positive actions
to enhance its sustainable competitiveness, and care for its employees,
society, and volunteer workers. These are all our directions requiring
constant efforts. We look forward to the feedback and suggestions from
all sectors, and hope we can grow robustly on the road to implement
corporate social responsibility and operate sustainably!
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CONSISTENT INTERPRETATION OF CHINESE CULINARY
CULTURE

Let everyone tasting delicious dishes is Master Kong's belief. We
dedicated to study Chinese culinary culture in-depth and modernize the
traditional taste into innovative foods and beverages, so that consumers
could experience profound culinary culture while tasting specific color,
smell, and flavor of our rich, healthy and delicious products.

Master Kong's consistent interpretation of Chinese culinary culture
is supported not only by its deep insight in consumer preference and
accurate grasp of the trend of catering industry, but also by its open-
minded appreciation of the unique flavors of various regions and its
innovative ideas on traditional cooking skills. In 2015, a great move of
Master Kong was the engagement of several renowned chefs for giving
precise research and development recommendations in food ingredients
and flavor combinations, so as to satisfy the widest taste preference of
consumers.

ALL FOR THE CONSUMERS

To provide consumers with quality food that is safe and healthy and
maintain our trustworthy brand name, Master Kong's food safety
management strictly follows the principle of “concrete infrastructure,
comprehensive surveillance and high transparency”. We do everything
for the benefit of our consumers. Safety is our core foundation and we
value consumers’ trust on us. Master Kong lays the foundation of its
sustainable development with sincerity in technical investment.

et tz13ERAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Concrete infrastructure: prevention-oriented risk management

In 2015, Master Kong's Innovation R&D Center and Food Safety Center
in Shanghai with an area of 2,000 m? was launched. As the center is
fully equipped with the industry’s top precision equipment with a total
investment exceeding RMB33 million in new testing instruments and a
monitoring system of 1,500 inspection indicators, the comprehensive
strength of Master Kong's huge world-class inspection mechanism has
reached internationally advanced level in the industry in terms of both
software and hardware. Our quality control keeps abreast of food safety
issues domestic and abroad and front-end scientific research information
and we proactively launches sampling and directional screening tests
which prioritize key raw material risks. Besides constantly updating in-
house technical points of food safety, we also take part in formulation
of relevant national regulations and standards with reference to
scientific findings. Externally, we select outstanding partners in the field
such as multinational brands and well-known research institutes to
form strong strategic alliances for project cooperation, enhancement in
product safety and prospective prevention-oriented studies on critical
raw materials. In respect of product development stage, we introduced
the “food safety access” system and “product lifecycle management
(PLM)" information management system to monitor major food safety
items from regulatory, risk survey and prospective research perspectives.
Our food safety control has been broadened to cover product design
process.
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Comprehensive surveillance: a positive cycle under complete
control

As a continuation of the Company’s great emphasis on food safety, we
continue to push forward institutionalization of risk management with
a “zero tolerance” attitude so as to realize triple assurances, namely on-
site production line quality assurance, case investigations by Business
Quality Control Center and research and monitoring investigations by
Food Safety Center. More than 3.5 million items are investigated and
confirmed annually. Each production unit has set up its own quality
control system in conformity to 1SO22000 or HACCP requirements,
having comprehensive control on different segments along the whole
business chain from rural agricultural raw materials in the upstream
to retail shops in the downstream for attaining complete accuracy in
every small unit. Every functional department plays its role in quality
control and building a virtuous cycle for quality safety management
by timely identifying risky areas on the whole traceable chain for
prompt rectification. Intensive training and exchange for food safety
technologies are frequently organized to consolidate the risks alertness
of all staff. Group-wide communications, recognitions and continuous
enhancement regarding the risks of food safety are encouraged, while
a reward and punishment mechanism covering every level of staff is
adopted, aiming to turn every employee into a “whistleblower”of any
potential wrongdoings.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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High transparency: social participation for building trust

The Company endeavors to impress consumers of our emphasis on and
efforts in food safety, and to strengthen their understanding, trust and
confidence in our brands and products. Master Kong's Instant Noodle
Impression Hall (BEAT{& 2R B 40 ENSR5E) and Beverage Brand Hall (8% &
[#£E), both recognized as the “National Education Base for Food Safety
Science”, are the frontiers for promoting the brands of the Company
and enhancing public awareness of food safety. They record an annual
reception of almost 80,000 visitors, which include domestic and foreign
officials, semi-officials, celebrities, social publics, and primary and
secondary school groups. The Food Safety Information Dissemination
Project (RmEZ 2 EEHZE), a special research commenced in 2015,
involve members from various businesses, functional departments
and business partners with a focus on how rumors are spread on the
Internet. The conclusion is that if product quality can be the focus of
discussion, the interactive communication should be more informative.
In response to “Food Safety in Campus (RmZEZZERETT)", a campaign
organized by the Food Safety Office of the State Council, Master Kong
actively participated in and sponsored a series of activities in “National
Food Safety Popular Science Promotion Week” in 2015. “Master Kong
Food Safety and Science Innovation Contest” utilized college students’
visual creativity and innovative outcomes as a medium to spark public
interest and encourage primary and secondary schools to involve in
popular science interactive activities. By furthering communication and
personal interaction with general public, academics and media, the
Company has earned a reputation as a contributor for the country and
a role model in promotion of popular science, indirectly fighting against
unfavorable rumors.

As a result of our outstanding contribution to food safety and food
safety popular science in 2015, Master Kong won the following awards
from industry regulators and media in the year: “Popular Science Award
(BIE & B 4%)" from China Business Annual Meeting on Enterprise
Competitiveness (R EFHF NEE), “Top Ten Public Service Role
Models (+ ARz #51)" from the Eighth Healthy China Forum (35 /\/&
f2EER Es1E), “Top Ten Enterprises in the Year(FF/E 3810 %)" from
13th China Food Safety Annual Conference and “China Food Enterprise
Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award (1B & RiIZif (¥ -4 % 15)"
from the Sixth China Food Safety Senior Management Dialogue 2015.
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ALL FOR THE PARTNERS

Master Kong has been treating employees as its most valuable partners
and relying on our people for the business over years. We maximize
the value of our employees through continuous improvement of our
human resource development policy in the aspects of selection, training,
utilization and retention, and continued to retain talents through
institutional system and incentive policies.

For external recruitment, Masters Kong actively co-operates with
domestic famous colleges and their food science faculties for nurturing
and enhancing the capabilities of potential talents in the industry.
We implement various recruitment and training policies to recruit
talents from different disciplines and various backgrounds according
to requirement for enterprise development. For internal selection and
training, Master Kong concerns about every aspects in employees’ daily
life and their personal growth. Not only do we recommend outstanding
staff for further study in renowned colleges such as Waseda University
and Shanghai Jiao Tong University, we also organize a variety of business
programs and social skills training courses to upgrade overall quality
of our staff members. We offer market-competitive salary packages
and set up a fair and impartial appraisal system which renders decent
standard of living as well as job performance incentives for our staff.
In addition, Master Kong takes care of the growth of our employees’
children by offering them scholarships to broaden their horizon. Talents
with virtues of diligence, honesty and competency form not only one of
the most important competitive edges for Master Kong's rapid growth,
but also the cornerstone of sustainable development of the enterprise.
Apart from nurturing dedicated and excellent staff, Master Kong
pays intensive attention to the development of whole industry chain
including raw material procurement and logistic supply, and the further
cooperation with third-party plants and enterprises. Indeed, Master
Kong'’s healthy development ties to the close collaboration with our
partners and our mutual flourishing relationship.

Master Kong upholds the principle of leading the healthy and orderly
development of the industry, and contributes to the sustainable
development of society and environment. By following and continuing
those measures in 2014, Master Kong will continue to implement
energy-saving and emission-reduction measures while improving
production efficiency:
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Steam is the major source of energy for instant noodle business. Under
the premise of ensuring product quality, we follow the existing energy
saving measures to reduce loss resulting from fluctuation in steam
supply by installing sub-cylinder steam saving tanks to stabilize steam
supply and improve whole system stability. We also cooperate with
professional energy companies to constantly develop and introduce
advanced energy-saving technologies. For instance, to introduce
the steam tank emission heat recovery technology; to develop the
steam turbine technology for replacement of traditional control
valves in releasing pressure, the energy lost during which process
can be converted into electric power; by using efficient hydrocarbon
refrigerants electricity consumption in air conditioning can be lower by
15- 30%. To sum up, the continuous introduction and application of
new energy-saving technologies have produced favorable economic and
social benefits.

In respect of atmospheric emissions, for meeting all emission targets, we
have invested substantial money for coal-fired boiler desulphurization,
dust bag filters, denitrification and transformation projects, and
installation of on-line surveillance equipment connected to the
government'’s intranet. In 2015, the annual conservation of resources
amounted to 55,800 tonnes of steam, 509,000 units of electricity, and
waste water discharge was reduced by 56,000 cubic meters, which
are equivalent to a reduction of carbon dioxide emissions by 43,000
tonnes, and a reduction of carbon emissions by 11,800 tonnes. In 2015,
our products’ stream BOM dropped 2.48%, which generated direct
efficiency of US$ 1.525 million (RMB 9.96 million) in money term.
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For the beverage business, the sewage treatment project for our plants
nationwide has been implementing in full gear. During the year, a total
volume of 47,500-58,500 tonnes/day of sewage water was treated,
all meeting the second grade of national discharging standard, while
70% of the plants meeting the first grade of national discharging
standard. We reinforced energy consumption management in our plants
through formulation of effective energy conservation measures such
as setting energy-saving targets, energy assessment, building energy
management mechanism and emphasis on meticulous enforcement
and measurable improvement. Additional energy saving and emission
reduction equipment was installed. For example, investment in new
sewage treatment project in Guiyang alone amounted to RMB8.65
million in 2015. Progress was seen in model selection and purchases
for production lines and auxiliary devices (more energy saving models),
reduction in contracted electricity capacity/automatic halt command
setting, more frequency conversions and automatic operation in auxiliary
equipment, reduction in air pressure in bottle blowing, implementation
of photovoltaic pilot project, promotion of LED lighting, and recovery of
condensed steam water, etc.

Through various energy saving management measures and conservation
projects, electricity consumption by per box of beverage bottle embryos
decreased by 3% in 2015 when compared to 2014. For other items,
water, electricity and steam consumption remained substantially
unchanged compared with 2014 due to lower utilization rate and
reduced production volume of the production lines.

Again, the Pepsi business was a business role model in taking social
responsibility and environmental protection in 2015. Pepsi’s 16 branch
companies in Jinan, Fuzhou, Guangzhou, etc. were recognized as “2015
top energy-saving companies in China’s beverage industry”, while its 17
branch companies in Beijing, Tianjin and Shenyang, etc. were awarded
the honorable title of “2015 outstanding enterprises for water-saving
in the beverage industry of China”, setting an admirable benchmark for
the whole society to follow.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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In response to society and our own demand for sustainable
development, Master Kong initiated a world prestigious school
cooperation scheme in 2009. During the five years from 2010 to 2015,
we have sponsored a total of 341 students from Taiwan, Hong Kong,
and Mainland China. In 2015, we further launched the “Master Kong
Scholarship (FRENEEIZ4#EE%)" project which aimed to support
poverty-stricken elite students from five top universities in China,
including Peking University, Tsinghua University, Fudan University,
Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Zhejiang University, to realize their
dreams by studying at Waseda University as exchange students in the
next five years.

The establishment of Shanghai operation center is a milestone of Master
Kong, signifying our decision of deepening development in China with
bases in Tianjin and Shanghai and our continuous effort of nurturing
talents for China's food industry. For international cooperation, we have
initiated several joint scholarship and GMIX summer intern programs
with Stanford University. Domestically, we have built up collaborative
relationship with 12 Project 985 and Project 211 universities in the
country. A series of cooperation programs, including scholarships,
orientation trainings, training base establishments, is in pipeline in 2016,
so as to benefit outstanding young students across China.

As a leading brand in China’s food and beverage industry, in 2015,
Master Kong assumed its obligation as a corporate citizen in taking
social responsibility, and made constructive contribution in public
welfare, disaster relief, etc. During the year, in response to the call of
“Food Safety into Campus (RmmZ&Z2#ERE)" by the government,
Master Kong solely sponsored and organized the “Public Food Safety
Science Innovation Contest” (RfaZ 2B 1% Az A&) which was
jointly hosted by China Food and Drug Administration, Communist
Youth League of China, China Economic Net, Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology and China Food Safety Forum 30 (FEE®%E
%30 A7®18), unveiling the first food safety visualization popular science
activity in China. This was a year-long campaign which showcased
the collected full visual works of popular science along a road show
starting from Beijing and passing through 11 cities. 10 leading experts
and scholars visited 42 colleges across the country and gave seminars
for spreading scientific knowledge of food safety. The campaign has
collected over 3000 digit maps, posters, animation, video clips and other
visual works which vividly demonstrated the extraordinary creativity of
our college students, and directly involved more than 20,000 teachers
and students who came from colleges with an aggregate student
population close to a million. The contest received accolades from
competent authorities and the society.
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During the second Shanghai International Popular Science Products
Expo in 2015 (2015 (£ —jE) LB EIEEMRIEEE), Master Kong
participated in a theme activity known as “Better Life in a Smart City (%5
B maEAE T 5E3)" which involved over 350 technology companies,
technology parks, research institutions and universities from 12 countries
and regions. The game “Passing Food Safety Check Points” (RZ R
K #8) solely sponsored by Master Kong stood out as a unique scenery
because of its fascinating, interactive and family elements. The carefully
designed questions and the interesting style of the game attracted many
parents and children. Through interactive games, they acquired food
safety knowledge by active participation in the edutainment.

Starting from 2015, Master Kong has been putting forward a water
education campaign led by Master Kong Youyue to transmit the idea
to primary school students in China that water is a useful, treasurable
and scarce asset. Further, as a sponsor of the NBA and CUBA games,
in 2015, Master Kong contributed to the promotion of basketball into
community and colleges campus as a way to foster health awareness,
especially for the youth sport development.

Master Kong has also donated RMB6 million as the charity kick-off
funding for “Mother Water Cellar”, which Master Priority Club is a co-
organizer, to play an active role in solving the problem of scarcity of
clean, safe water in some areas. The project employed multi-platforms
to raise money from consumers in an interactive way online and
offline. Thousands of runners recorded their mileage in reality while
Internet users did their part on fingerboards via virtual platforms such
as QQ mobile water drop, plump APP and drops taxi. Participants were
encouraged to donate to “Mother Water Cellar” through mileage
exchanges and on-line consumption.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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For disaster relief and post-disaster restoration, Master Kong also made
a lot of efforts and contributions in 2015. We saw Master Kong quickly
sending instant noodles and drinks from its inventory to victims suffering
from earthquake in Pishan County, Xinjiang, floods in Pingyang,
Zhejiang and landslides in Shanyang, Shaanxi, giving vital relief and
restoration supports to the stricken regions. Especially in the aftermath
of the massive explosion incident in Binhai New Area of Tianjin, Master
Kong immediately organized its employees for quick deployment of its
products and paying visits to give emotion support. Afterwards, Master
Kong continued provision of its products as relief supplies. Furthermore,
Master Kong made donations of RMB1.20 million to Ya'an disaster
areas for construction of 7 “Master Kong Safe Classrooms” for local
schools.

In recognition of Master Kong'’s various contribution to the society,
Mr. James Chun- Hsien Wei, our Chief Executive Officer, was awarded
the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneur in the 2015 Corporate Social
Responsibility Ranking in China 2015FEFRBEtEH @S THEE
EX9)
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provision A.4.1. The
reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose
biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages
52 to 54 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations thereof;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. During the financial year ended 31
December 2015, five Board meetings were held. The attendance of
individual director to the Board meetings in year 2015 is summarised
below:

HEBITEEREBNRE
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou 5/5
Mr. Junichiro Ida 5/5
Mr. Ryo Yoshizawa (passed away on

8 March 2015) 1/5
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi 5/5
Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao (Resigned on

4 February 2015) 1/5
Mr. Teruo Nagano 5/5
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (appointed on 5/5

4 February 2015)
Mr. Koji Shinohara (appointed on 3/5

28 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 5/5
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 5/5
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 5/5

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors approves
the Group's strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group's
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures appropriate implementation of measures to manage these
risks.

The Board of Directors has delegated decisions regarding the daily
operation and administration of the Group to the management, under
the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 74 to 75.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented with visits
to the Group’s key business sites and/or meetings with the senior
management of the Company.

Internally-facilitated briefings for directors will be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors
where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors,
on corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules
amendments and provided reading materials on regulatory update
to all the directors for their reference and studying.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system, the preperation
of financial statements, risk management and internal control systems.
It also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company's
auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. Four meetings
were held during the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Details of
the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

I BTERAE

Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on
11 August 2005. This Committee now comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock and
Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the
Committee. One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31
December 2015.

HEBITEBRE

Number of meetings

Members Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 11

The Committee was set up review the structure, size and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive directors
and consider and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, including the terms of salary and
bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes. The Committee
also reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board from time
to time and recommends to the Board on appointments of Directors
and the succession planning for Directors. Details of the Directors’ and
senior management’s emoluments of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control and risk management system for the Group.
The Group's internal control and risk management system includes a
well defined management structure with limit of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, to ensure proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has instructed the Group’s
internal audit department to conduct annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management system of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. No material deficiencies
on the internal control and risk management functions came to the
attention of the internal audit department during the annual review for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The Board and the Audit Committee
therefore considered that the internal control and risk management
system of the Group is effective.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited has been re-appointed as the Indpendent Auditor
of the Company by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
27 May 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, total fees paid/
payable in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services
to Mazars CPA Limited amounted to US$1,460,000 and US$65,000
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip's primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Liu Kuo Wei, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 23 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.
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CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 25% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall all time have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition pursuant to Article 57 of the
Company’s articles of association. Such requisition must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the office of the Company. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the requisition may do so in
accordance with the provision of Article 57 of the Company’s articles of
association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, quarterly, interim and annual reports.
Moreover, additional information is also available to shareholders
through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The
Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company'’s constitutional documents for
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2015, the Group
conducted more than 265 meetings with approximately 1,570 analysts
and fund managers. Investors can also obtain useful information and
updates on the Group’s business development from our websites. The
Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency and the quality
of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hong Kong’s benchmark Hang
Seng Index, which are widely used international equity benchmarks by
institutional investors. In May, Tingyi Holding and Miss Debbie Ho were
awarded the Best IR Company and the Best IRO in the Large Cap in the
HKIRA 1st Investor Relations Awards respectively. In the same month,
Institutional Investor magazine released the results of the First Asia’s
Best Analyst Days rankings, Tingyi Holding awarded the first place in
the consumer sector. In July, the magazine released the results of the
2015 All Asia Executive Team rankings. Tingyi Holding was awarded first
place of the Best Investor Relations and Miss Debbie Ho was awarded
one of the top three of the Best IRO in the consumer sector respectively.
Being recognized by the international investors, in addition to providing
confirmation to the investor relations work of the Company, it also
provides a lot of encouragement to the investor relations team of the
Company. The Group is currently covered by 30 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

WEI Ing-Chou, aged 62, Chairman of the Group, elder brother of
Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao, joined the Group in 1991 and is responsible
for the supervision and the management of the Group as well as
the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. He has over 30
years' experience in factory construction, production management
and research in relation to food production. In September 2010, Mr.
Wei Ing-chou, was awarded an honorary doctorate degree by Waseda
University of Japan in recognition of his outstanding contributions in
areas such as business operations and corporate social responsibility
over the years. Mr. Wei resigned his role as the CEO of the Group on 1
January 2015.

Junichiro IDA, aged 54, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined Fuji Bank and
worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

WU Chung-Yi, aged 60, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in 1996, is the CEO of GSK Group. He attended the University
of California in Los Angeles in the United States and has experience in
corporate management.

Teruo NAGANO, aged 67, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 19 September 2013. Mr. Nagano has been employed by
Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyo Foods”) since February 2000 and joined
the Company in March 2000 as the Senior Advisor to the office of the
Chief Financial Officer. In July 2007 he returned to Sanyo Foods as the
Deputy General Manager of the Oversea Division and then joined the
Company again in November 2010 as the Senior Advisor to the office
of the Chief Financial Officer. He is currently Senior General Manager
of Overseas Business Division of Sanyo Foods. After graduating from
Hitotsubashi University of Economics in 1972, he worked in Fuji Bank
for over 29 years. He has substantial working experience in the financial
industry and has comprehensive knowledge of the international financial
markets.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 4 February 2015. Mr. Wei joined the Group as project
manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006. From 2013 to 2015, he was
appointed as a director of Calbee Inc. in Japan. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mathematics from King's College, the University
of London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the USA.
Mr. Wei is the son of Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, the Chairman of the Group.

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 48, appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from Keio University of Economics in 1990, he worked in
Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales and business management.
In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola
(Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior Director of ready-to-drink
(RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-Cola Atlanta headquarter. In
2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice President of brand marketing
of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than 20 years working experience in
the brand marketing industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 76, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute and fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 86, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had worked as
counselor of America Bureau, ambassador in OECD, Singapore and
Australia, and director of Economic Affairs Bureau. Mr.Fukada has been
the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry Ltd. since 2006.

COMPANY SECRETARY

IP Pui-Sum, aged 56, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the ordinary member of Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration in 1996. Mr. Ip has over 20 years of experience in public
accounting and company secretarial practices. He is also a certified
public accountant (practising) in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
September 1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 58, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager
of Great China, overseeing the company’s health and beauty care
business in that region. Mr. Wei established P&G Pantene PRO-V and
SK Il brands with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, and established
Taiwan's success as global success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from
National Taiwan University and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago
Booth School of Business in USA.

Wilson WU, aged 59, joined the Group in May 1994 and is the Chief
Auditor. He graduated from the Management Science Institute, Tam
Kang University in Taiwan in 1983, majoring in accounting, taxation and
financial management.

KuoWei LIU, aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Assistant Manager of Finance
Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering of Taiwan
National Cheng Kung University, Master of Computer Science of
Imperial College, University of London and an M.B.A. from Wharton
School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in Wharton
School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix Chang'’s
Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.
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Jammy XU, aged 57, is the Chief of Staff, joined the Group in March
1997. Mr. Xu used to be the executive of IT Department and SM&A
Department. He graduated from Applied Mathematics Department of
Chinese Culture University in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked for Rongdian Company, Qiaoju Trading Company, Nanchow
Chemical Industrial Company. Mr Xu is familiar with IT business, good
at communication and coordination. And skilled in organization and
management.

Walt WU, aged 55, Chief Human Resources Officer. He graduated
from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National San
Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President
of Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO office in
September 2014 and in November 2014 was appointed as the Chief of
Human Resources. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Twinhead
International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human Resources, Tsrc
Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice President of Human
Resources. Mr. Wu has 24 years of experience in human resources
management, with expertise in strategic human resource management,
human development, and strive to create the Group’s succession
echelon talent, to maximize human resources benefits.

Richard CHEN, Chief R&D Officer, aged 53, joined the Group
in February 2013. He graduated from the Chemical Engineering
Department, National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the Group, he
had 25 years of global R&D experience in Procter & Gamble. Mr. Chen
is trilingual and worked in Taiwan, US, Japan and China for leading
Consumer Product Innovation and R&D Capability Building.

Alex LIN, aged 59, is the Executive President of the Group’s Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from Chung Yuan Christian University
in Taiwan. Mr. Lin joined the Group in October 2000 and served as
Vice President of planning department of beverage business, General
Manager of Guangzhou Tingjin, Guangzhou Tingyi, Tianjin Tingyi
and Hangzhou Tingjin. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin served for
Boshang Market Research Company, Nanchow Chemical Industrial
Company and its related company Lucky Royal Co., Ltd., which he
worked as head of planning and business and logistics management
for lotion daily necessities, industrial oils, edible oils and fats, crackers
and candies, room temperature and refrigerated drinks and popsicles
departments. He worked in Wei Chuan Foods Corporation for 19 years
as General Manager of room temperature drink department and dried
food department. Mr. Lin has over 35 years extensive management
experience in sales and marketing.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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George HUANG, aged 58, is the Executive President of the Group's
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in June 2001 as Head of
Sales Department of the Group's Instant Noodle Business, General
Manager of Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. in April 2002 and was the
President of the Group's Beverage Business in January 2005. Mr. Huang
graduated from Tourism Department of Chinese Culture University
in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a British Trading
Company TAIT CO. and was the Sales Director of Swire Coca-Cola,
Taiwan. Mr. Huang is particularly familiar in sales & marketing and
business strategy, familiar with the China market. And especially skilled
in figure sense, detailed management and strong executive force.

Vincent LIU, aged 56, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000
and has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of
Chong Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou
Tingjin. Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading
Company TAIT CO. Mr.Liu is particularly familiar management in sales
and marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.

Bob CHEN, aged 57, is the Executive Vice President of the Group’s
Instant Food Business . Mr. Chen holds a BBA from Fu Jen Catholic
University and an EMBA from National Taiwan University. He joined the
Group in August 2014. Mr. Chen has an intensive experience of more
than 30 years in the field of marketing and strategic management. He
worked for NamChow Chemical Industrial Co., Modern Home Products
(@ JV of P&G and NamChow), P&G Singapore/Malaysia, P&G Taiwan,
Great Wall Co., Hwa Wei & Grey Advertising Agency (a subsidiary of
WPP group), Nirvana Brand Consulting Group and DaChan Foods (Asia)
Limited.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles, beverages and instant food in the PRC.

BEEHHE D 2 AEBEEBRIRREE An analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
RFBR) 2PN T owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:
PR R PB4 A (B518)
Profit (loss)
Wz attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
FET FEIT FETT FZET
Uss’000 Us$°000 Us$000 Us$°000
F B Instant noodles 3,612,742 4,137,736 273,922 360,388
R m Beverages 5,244,232 5,801,005 17,639 71,956
FERM Instant food 136,855 178,729 (21,368) (17,449)
Hi Others 108,981 120,512 (13,853) (14,413)
=X Total 9,102,810 10,237,982 256,340 400,482

REBNAFEZEBLBEMEAEEK
RREBER R - NEEREZE 2015
F12 A31 B 1IE#F S 7] g8 E 7 & g A0
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MBEZEFE28EEZBRIEEENWMED
MIRE298EZ3IN BEEERIREIRS -
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2015 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 6 to 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 28 and in the section headed “Prospects” on
pages 29 to 31 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2015 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 28 of
this annual report.

et tz13ERAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



%%ﬁ & A_,\ ]J IJE

AREBERE2015F12 431 HILFE %
IBRIEENARERE 76 AN A IR o

EEeERRERBRE  FR229%
il - HIR3E1.28B3TT ©

REFIZ B R 2016F 7 A 6 B =k A 12 Ik
- M20165F6 F10BEE B KRR A
D ER 2 BRI B B LB T ER IR E 2
HWERRE -

i

AEEAREE HEESFHEHNE 31
BEEQ AZIFABRRBAZEHE -

M= - BEBRRE

BRAME - #E MR  FHIFER

B RARMFE15 o

R

REWE

AEEREMEFBRANP B HRRME
14 -

2015 Annual Report £3§

EEZE | Directors’ Report

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 76.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US2.29
cents per ordinary share, totalling US$128 million.

The final dividend will be paid on or before 6 July 2016. Shareholders
registered under the Hong Kong branch register of members on 10 June
2016 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong dollars.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 81 to 82.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 and 4.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Other than the Company’s repurchased of 1,238,000 shares on the
Stock Exchange during the year for approximately US$2.219 million,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the period. All shares
repurchased have been cancelled and will not be reissued or resold.
Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK Stock Exchange during
the year are as follows:

X

(TEEER)

88 B IR 10 42 21 Aggregate

Total number X fIEKRESE ZXNESRKEE amount paid

of shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding

BE A% Month of repurchases repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
(&) (&) (&)

(HK3) (HK$) (HK$)

20156 A June 2015 220,000 15.48 15.08 3,339,140
20157 A July 2015 228,000 14.83 13.80 3,270,460
2015 8 A August 2015 790,000 13.52 11.86 10,525,935
1,238,000 17,135,535
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 March 2008, the
shareholders approved the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Detail
arrangement for the share option scheme is shown below (Table A):

F=A Table A
BRRY
Number of share
BLRE 1EE granted to
Number of (Br)
&AW share options (i Exercise REN  2HE James
Date of grant granted Exercisable period price (HKS) ~ WeiIng-Chou  Chun-Hsien Wei
2008463 A20H 11,760,000 2013%3H218Z2018%3A 208 $9.28 2,000,000
20 March 2008 21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018
2009F4A 228 26,638,000 20144 2382201948228 $9.38 2,816,000
22 April 2009 23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019
201054 A1H 15,044,000 20154 R18%2020%3A318 $18.57 2,200,000
1 April 2010 1 April 2015 10 31 March 2020
011E48128 17,702,000 2016548 1285202154118 $19.96 2,264,000
12 April 2011 12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021
2012447268 9,700,000 201754R26AZ 202264 A25H $20.54 1,368,000
26 April 2012 26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022
2013%5H27H 11,492,000 20184 5H278%2023F5R8 268 $20.16 1,390,000 904,000
27 May 2013 27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023
2014548178 12,718,500 201954 178202454 A 16H $22.38 1,486,000 1,148,000
17 April 2014 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024
2015566 A5H 17,054,000 202056 A5H£2025%6 4R $16.22 1,726,000 2,006,000
5 June 2015 5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025

HZE2015F 12 A31BIE+=—@AR » K
B8 T H£77(#350,0000% - fIAEFHTT
£18/9.38 87T - 1718 A Z ATAI hNEF 15
WHEA17.498 7T - FFHAERE NI
WRMTE30 -
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AEE 27 IR1TE IR Z 7B H R B RS R
5320
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2015, 350,000
options had been exercised by employees under the Share Option
Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$9.38 and the
weighted average market closing price before the date of exercise
was HK$17.49. For details, please refer to note 30 to the financial
statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou

Mr. Junichiro Ida

Mr. Wu Chung-Yi

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (appointed on 4 February 2015)
Mr. Koji Shinohara (appointed on 28 May 2015)

Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao (resigned on 4 February 2015)
Mr. Ryo Yoshizana (passed away on 8 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015)

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.

The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 52 to 57.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(@) Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RIBERE
FHEMEH
gy 4= 1 IR A7 48 B K% E
Number of Shares Aot Number of
PN £ EERER Percentage underlying
Personal Corporate of the issued Shares held
®H Name interests interests share capital under options
(Btat 1) (Btet2)
(see note 1) (see note 2)
5= Directors
ZRIEM Wei Ing-Chou 13,242,000 1,871,331,866 33.91% 15,250,000
BEA Wei Hong-Ming —  1,871,331,866 33.40% -
TH#%K  Chief Executive Officer
BERE James Chun-Hsien Wei — — — 4,058,000
2015 Annual Report F#§ 63
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(b) Long position in shares of associated corporation

REEEE 2
HREE
(Hiat3) 15 IR 17 48 21
Number of Aotk
shares of Percentage EEME
=Y BELEER the associated  of the issued  Nature of
Name of Directors Name of associated Corporation corporation share capital interest
(Note 3)
RN EEERmIERAER A 180,008 17.10% ZNE]
Wei Ing-Chou Tingyi-Asahi Beverages HoIding Co., Ltd. 180,008 Corporate
RER% BEEM B R m =R A PR A 7] 180,008 17.10% ZNE]
Wei Hong-Ming Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. 180,008 Corporate
Hiat - Note:

1.

64

% %1,871,331,866 % A% 17 M T8 ¥1(F £
E)ERERAR(TEFN DIFE RUEE
FET BHAMEAR(FE])ESE
BH44761% - AEEZERERAF(E

4 ) A 430.239% * FEEEEKRRA
4 E17.835% @ ¥ H &£ BIERE RN

&1t 2 i B2 & China Foods Investment
Corp. F566.482% KRB F=EFHH#H
#90.683% ° A& K E 42 Th e Profit Surplus
Holdings Limited([ Profit Surplus]) 100%
A © Profit Surplus 2B EFEMZFEA -
MR (=7 A B AR E ST HRAEE A
#5745 ° HSBC International Trustee Limited
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1.

These 1,871,331,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin"”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.761% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer"”), as to 17.835% by Itochu Corp., and 6.482% by
China Foods Investment Corp., a subsidiary of Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd.,
and as to the remaining 0.683% by unrelated third parties. Ho Te and Rich
Cheer were owned as to 100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited ("Profit
Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn
held by four discretionary trusts in equal proportions. HSBC International
Trustee Limited is the trustee of each of the above four discretionary trusts,
the settlors and discretionary objects of the above four discretionary trusts
are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Chang Lu-Yun's family members (including Wei
Hong-Ming) as discretionary objects;

—  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Lin Li-Mien and family members as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien and family members as discretionary
objects; and

—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Wei Tu Miao and family members as discretionary objects.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,242,000 shares and holds
15,250,000 share options (details shown as Table A on page 61) under the
share option scheme of the Company passed by an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2008. Wei Chang Lu-Yun,
being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also deemed to be interested in the
shares and the underlying shares held by Wei Ing-Chou.

James Chun-Hsien Wei holds 4,058,000 share options (details shown
as Table A on page 61) under the share option scheme of the Company
passed by an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20
March 2008.

3. These 180,008 shares are held by and registered under the name of Ting
Hsin. Please refer to note 1 for the shareholding structure of Ting Hsin.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2015 there were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Name of shareholder

TR (R At 1)A

Ting Hsin (see note 1)

RMERR (M 1)A

Ho Te Investments Limited (see note 1)4
LlmRAERRR(ZAE 1)

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see note 1)

Profit Surplus Holdings Limited( £ 477 1)
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see note 7)4
HSBC International Trustee Limited (2472 1)A
HSBC International Trustee Limited (see note 1)~
RRBE(EHFZ I R2)

Wei Chang Lu-Yun (see notes 1 & 2)*
W (2 M 1)4

Lin Li-Mien (see note 1)

BT AB(ZMT 1)

Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien (see note 1)4
BRE(EMT 1)

Wei Tu Miao (see note 1)A

=HFRmiRA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A MIEE 1 R 2 BN AFIRE 64 % 65 EH

C Notes 1 & 2 are set out on pages 64 to 65
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS'’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as was known to any Directors or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and the underlying Shares

HEBITRA

BERGEE ZEA %
g4 Number of % of the
Capacity shares held issued share
BEREAA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Beneficial owner
R AR 1,871,331,866 33.40
Interest of controlled company
CSEYNGIL: 3 1,871,331,866 33.40
Interest of controlled company
BRUEEXFEA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Trustee of a unit trust
REEEXEA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Trustee of discretionary trusts
MIEEREETEA 1,899,823,866 33.91
Settlor of a discretionary trust
BBETEELEA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Settlor of a discretionary trust
HEEEEELEA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Settlor of a discretionary trust
MIEEREETEA 1,871,331,866 33.40
Settlor of a discretionary trust
BERBAA 1,882,927,866 33.61

Beneficial owner

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2015.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There is no change in the information of directors of the Company,
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Wei Hong Ming, an executive director of the Company,
ceased to act as a director of Wei Chuan Foods Corporation (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange) with effect from 14
November 2014, and ceased to act as a director of Calbee Inc. (a
company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. in Japan) with
effect from 25 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to US$2.755
million.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 15 November 2013, the Company entered into (1) TZCI Supply
Agreement, pursuant to which, Tingzheng (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. (“TZCI") supplies the TZCl materials (plastics and flexible
packaging materials) to the Group for a term commencing from 1
January 2014 until 31 December 2016. (2) TFS Supply Agreement,
pursuant to which, Tianjin Ting Fung Starch Development Co., Ltd.
("TFS™) will supply the TFS products (modified potato starch and
seasoning flavor products) to the Group for a term commencing from 1
January 2014 until 31 December 2016. Greater System Holdings Limited
(owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, an executive director, and Mr. Wei Ying-
Chiao, an executive director at that time, and their associates) holds
40.8% TZCl shares and 51.0% TFS shares respectively. The ordinary
resolution approving the continuing connected transactions were duly
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 December
2013. Details for these transactions may be found at the Company'’s
announcements and circular dated 18 November 2013, 6 December
2013 and 30 December 2013 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the amounts totaling
US$353.585 million under the category of purchases of goods from
TZCl of US$343.131 million and TFS of US$10.454 million as disclosed
in note 37 to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 25 October 2013, the Company entered into the Supply Agreement
with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) for
the supply by the subsidiaries of the Group of the Products to Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries for a term commencing from the date of the
Supply Agreement until 31 December 2015. Ting Chuan operates the
Family Mart. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held
approximately 33.16% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the agreement date. Details for the transaction may be
found at the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2013.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the amounts totaling US$14.789
million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Chuan as disclosed
in note 37 to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into the Food Supply
Agreement with Shandong Weizhen Food Co., Ltd (“Shandong
Weizhen") in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen and dried food
materials, other meat products, dried meat floss and processing services
from Shandong Weizhen for a term commencing from 1 January 2015
until 31 December 2017. Shandong Weizhen is beneficially owned as
to 75% by Great System, a company which is owned by Mr. Wei Ing-
Chou, an executive director, and Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao, an executive
director at that time, and their associates, and as to 25% by Sanyo, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Details for the transaction may
be found at the Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the amounts totaling
US$123.444 million under the category of purchases of goods from
Shandong Weizhen as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements
fall under the definition of continuing connected transaction in the
Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2014, Pepsi (China) Investment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Group entered into the Beverages Supply Agreement with Tianjin
Ting Qiao Advisory Service Co., Ltd. (“Ting Qiao”) for the supply of
beverage products by the Group’s bottlers to the fast food outlets of
Dicos for a term commencing from 1 January 2015 until 31 December
2017. Ting Qiao operates the Dicos fast food restaurant chain in
the PRC and is beneficially owned as to 88% by Ting Hsin, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company holding approximately
33.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the agreement date. Details for the transaction may be found at the
Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the amounts totaling US$8.198
million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Qiao as disclosed
in note 37 to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl, TFS and
Shandong Weizhen, the sales of goods to Ting Qiao and Ting Chuan
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl,
TFS and Shandong Weizhen, the sales of goods to Ting Qiao and Ting
Chuan have nothing come to their attention that caused them to believe
that:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the cap.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
Environmental Protection

Environmental protection is a key focus for the Group. The
conscientious use of resources and adoption of related best practices
across the Group's businesses underlie its commitment to safeguarding
the environment. The Group encourages environmental protection
by promoting awareness of the issue amongst its employees. It also
complies with relevant environmental legislation.

An ever-improving management system, enhanced monitoring of
activies and procedures, energy conversation and environmental
protection are strongly promoted.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its
operations comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
audit committee of the Company is delegated by the Board to monitor
the Group's policies and practices for achieving compliance with legal
and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in all material
respects with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group's business and operations.

Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate
on the basis of any personal characteristics.

The Group believes that employees are the most valuable assets of an
enterprise and regards human resources as its corporate wealth. The
Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to
enhance its employees’ career progression. Through different types
of training, staff’'s knowledge of corporate operations as well as their
occupational and management skills are enhanced. The Group also
organises staff-friendly activities for employees, such as outings, to
promote staff relationships and physical fitness.
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Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial
work environment and it values the health and well-being of its
staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such
issues and enhance their related behavior.

Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal development
and growth of all employees and considers training and development
a critical continuous process. Many on the-job and other training
courses and programmes are provided to help employees maintain and
develop their skills and professionalism. Structured training programmes
including seminars are offered to staff with the objective of grooming
and unleashing their full potential, supporting, organisational
development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are encouraged
to take advantage of these programmes in order to equip themselves
with the skills and knowledge for expanded career opportunities within
the Group.

Commitment to Quality

The Group has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering
premium products. Looking forward to 2016, the Company will
continue with its research and innovation to enrich the Group’s
products.

The Company will also ensure the quality and safety of its products and
place customers’ needs at its priority in order to maintain its competitive
advantage and to increase shareholders’ value further.

Management of Supply Chain

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria in selecting
suppliers and service providers, and has established a supplier evaluation
system in which vendors’ price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales
service are assessed. The Group will carry out long-term monitoring of
suppliers’ quality and conduct regular reviews of all suppliers as well
as casual examinations of different suppliers to ensure the sustainable
quality of material supplies and services it receives.

Rea¥iz3ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 11 to 28
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on pages 29 to 31
under “Prospects” of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Ing-Chou
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 22 March 2016
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

TG o o o 5 7 47 R A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

T s AT VO 1 85 TP BR G 40

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) set out on pages 76 to 217,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015 and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2016

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2015F 12 A31 HLLFE
Year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
it FET FET
Note Uss$’000 Us$’000
U & Revenue 6 9,102,810 10,237,982
SHE AN Cost of sales (6,202,615) (7,119,944)
EH Gross profit 2,900,195 3,118,038
b U e B E b F YA Other revenue and other net income 8 162,144 209,401
7 AR Distribution costs (1,883,844) (2,138,598)
THEA Administrative expenses (344,324) (299,549)
H b & A Other operating expenses (312,117) (155,841)
5B R Finance costs 9 (61,838) (47,151)
RS A S AT¥ELE  Share of results of associates
and joint ventures 11,282 7,269
RREL AR R Profit before taxation 9 471,498 693,569
HiE Taxation 11 (190,014) (208,820)
KEERF Profit for the year 281,484 484,749
FERER Profit attributable to:
ZAN/NG S Owners of the Company 256,340 400,482
DERERRR Non-controlling interests 25,144 84,267
EERF Profit for the year 281,484 484,749
FrRER Earnings per share 13
AR Basic US4.57 cents US7.15 cents
g Diluted US4.57 cents US7.13 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$°000
KEERF Profit for the year 281,484 484,749
Hit 2 (BB WS : Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TEELEZ Items that will not be reclassified to
1B ARIE A profit or loss:
REBNEFZEME Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations (13,229) 2,349
YR T AR E Surplus on revaluation of properties and
BHAEH prepaid lease payments 2,026 —
BEMERTWHEAREES Deferred tax arising from revaluation of
ZIERER properties and prepaid lease payments (506) —
(11,709) 2,349
AR [ E DT Items that are or may be reclassified

BmlRr A subsequently to profit or loss:

[ 5 =5 Exchange differences on consolidation (236,019) (101,998)

A ESMEEAREZEE Fair value changes in available-for-sale

financial assets 5,560 11,040

RAFEHERHEE Reclassification adjustments relating to

CREECEDERE available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year (5,736) —
(236,195) (90,958)
AEEHMEZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year,

BREL& net of tax (247,904) (88,609)
rEEXHNHERE Total comprehensive income for the year 33,580 396,140
EEE2ms(EE) - Total comprehensive income (loss)

attributable to:
ZAN/NG S Owners of the Company 68,126 336,629
LSRR Non-controlling interests (34,546) 59,511
33,580 396,140

2015 Annual Report F#§
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M2015F 12 A31H
At 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Htat FET FET
Note Uss’00o Us$’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
REEEE Investment properties 14 154,498 —
M - EERERE Property, plant and equipment 15 5,396,574 5,859,905
TH AR E Prepaid lease payments 16 607,822 737,387
mEEE Intangible asset 17 26,551 27,305
Bt N A e Interest in associates 19 30,065 31,973
BENTER Interest in joint ventures 20 82,741 74,153
AIHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 92,120 79,052
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 25(b) 15,400 —
BT IBEE Deferred tax assets 33 49,002 53,009
6,454,773 6,862,784
RBEE Current assets
BAREEYREREEZE  Finandial assets at fair value through
REENS/EE profit or loss 22 — 2,352
e Inventories 23 325,793 386,958
U BR K Trade receivables 24 233,403 238,239
AT Y @ 518 Tax recoverable 14,780 —
TR FRIE R A Prepayments and other receivables 25 429,057 532,621
FE W R IE
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 12,048 12,203
RITRHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 26 1,011,652 1,170,900
2,026,733 2,343,273
HEE Total assets 8,481,506 9,206,057
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At

20159128318
31 December 2015

2015 2014
k3 FET FET
Note Us$000 Us$'000
BRREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR A Capital and reserves
BATIRAR Issued capital 27 28,014 28,019
Pt s (8 Share premium 28 63,900 65,421
& Reserves 29 2,817,145 2,940,117
¥ UNET)E S Total capital and reserves attributable
BERAR EEEEE to owners of the Company 2,909,059 3,033,557
DERRER Non-controlling interests 985,202 1,062,107
RERERAEE Total equity 3,894,261 4,095,664
FREBEME Non-current liabilities
BAnBEYERERE Financial liabilities at fair value
BRRRENSRmAE through profit or loss 22 9,080 —
REIE BEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 31 1,326,367 1,246,720
BTHRMEE Employee benefit obligations 32 42,901 28,702
BETRIBRE Deferred tax liabilities 33 221,807 198,487
1,600,155 1,473,909
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72015812 A31H
At 31 December 2015

2015 2014
k3 FET FZETT
Note Uss$000 Us$’000
REEE Current liabilities
JE - BR R Trade payables 34 722,288 896,131
EfEMFIERBUWIFE  Other payables and deposits received 35 1,008,234 1,233,472
BEREEZ Current portion of interest-

BNHEAER1D bearing borrowings 31 1,123,198 1,382,034
BFEIEMKRIA Advance payments from customers 123,179 100,522
1A Taxation 10,191 24,325

2,987,090 3,636,484
wes Total liabilities 4,587,245 5,110,393
BRREREXRAE Total equity and liabilities 8,481,506 9,206,057
FRBEE Net current liabilities (960,357) (1,293,211)
HEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 5,494,416 5,569,573

MR2016F3 A2 EBREEFTEH ENIFRE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

FE8 WHNATATRERES March 2016 and sign on its behalf by
BLFE M Wei Ing-Chou F HE#E—EP Junichiro Ida
ZEZ Director EZ Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2015F 12 A31 BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2015

KRRRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BaREE JakiEs e
BORA RiVEE Total Non- RRlE
Issued Share e capital and controling Total
capital premium Reserves TEServes interests equity
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Ussooo Ussooo Ussooo Ussooo uss oo Uss oo
R014E1R18 At 1 January 2014 27982 53431 2,798,879 2,880,292 1,046,095 3,926,387
TERET Profit for the year - - 400,482 400,48 84,267 484,749
Efp2mE(FE) b Other comprehensive (loss) income
REBNEMCERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - - 1584 1584 765 2,349
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (76,477) (76,477) (25,521) (101,998
ARNESBEELBECED  Fairvalue changes in
available-for-sale financial assets — - 11,040 11,040 - 11,040
Eth2EERAE  RE4 Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - (63853) (63853) (24.756) (88,609)
REERANGAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 336,629 336,629 59,511 396,140
HADNARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REESE Contributions and distribution
EatERhTN 7% Equity settled share-based transactions - - 11,837 11,837 - 11,837
BEERETERT IR Shares issuied under share option scheme 37 11,990 (2,904) 9,123 - 9,123
BREREE013ERERE 2013 final dividend approved and paid - - (204,324) (204,324) (43.499) (247823)
HADNARFZRS4E Total transactions with owners
of the Company 37 11,990 (195,391) (183,364) (43,499) (226,863)
R2014E128318 At 31 December 2014 28,019 65,421 2,940,117 3,033,557 1,062,107 4,095,664
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HZE2015F12 8318 ILFE
Year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRRER

RaRElE SURFER RE
BiRA RHEE Total Non- ERAE
Issued Share f%  cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
F£7 F£7 F£r F£7 F£r F£7
Usso0 Ussoo0 Usso00 Uss000 Uss 000 Uss 000
R201551818 At 1 January 2015 28,019 65,421 2,940,117 3,033,557 1,062,107 4,095,664
REREN Profit for the year - - 256,340 256,340 25,144 281,484
A2 E(FE) hE Other comprehensive (loss) income
AEBNEM ERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - - (9,926) (9,926) (3.303) (13,229
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (179,632) (179,632) (56,387) (236,019)
AEHESBEELABEZED  Fairvalue changes in available-for-sale
financial assets - - 5,560 5,560 - 5,560
RENEETHPESHEE  Redassiication adjustment relating
JENERE to available-for-sale financia
assets disposed of during the year - - (5.736) (5.736) - (5.736)
MERLHEOEE Surplus on revaluation of properties
EfREH and prepaid lease payments - - 2,026 2,026 - 2,026
EftER TN Effect of deferred tax arising
BEEE B from revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payments - - (506) (506) - (506)
Eft2EEELE BH4 Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - (188,214) (188,214) (59,690) (247,904)
TEE2AUNEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 68,126 68,126 (34,546) 33,580
HARARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEAT Contributions and distribution
EatERhTN B Equity settled share-based transactions - - 9,089 9,089 - 9,089
REERE 2R T RN Shares issuied under share option schere 2 698 (127) 573 - 573
BREREE014ERERE 2014 final dividend approved and paid - - (200,067) (200,067) (42,359) (242,426
IR Shares repurchased 0 (2219 7 (2219 - (2219
HANARRZRHEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company (5) (1,521) (191,098) (192,624) (42,359) (234,983)
R2015E12 8318 At 31 December 2015 28,014 63,900 2,817,145 2,909,059 985,202 3,894,261
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
ftat FET FET
Note Uss’000 Us$°000
REEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXBMERE Cash generated from operations 36 1,028,250 760,265
EHMRRECENSR The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (192,362) (230,376)
[mE el Interest paid (60,510) (46,974)
RETBHABEESTE Net cash from operating activities 775,378 482,915
REEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B WA S Interest received 45,643 54,867
RN ] Dividend received from an associate 652 —
mA eSS il Dividend received from a joint venture — 12,068
HEHEE Proceeds from disposal of
ERMEELZE available-for-sale financial assets 16,402 —
HERAREBETIER Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
EEZEREES at fair value through profit or loss
TREEZMF 3,333 4,625
BALRAAEEYENE  Purchase of financial assets at
BEaRRENEREE fair value through profit or loss (109) (1,950)
BANHEESRHEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (25,092) (43,349)
BAMZE - HBENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (483,819) (970,995)
BT HERE Prepaid lease payments (60,437) (335,168)
HEYWE - s R Proceeds from sale of property,
B plant and equipment 20,173 15,721
LE—fERB AR Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary
BIREELN A — 19,916
WEEA SN FIkER Acquisition of interest in joint ventures — (3,375)
RETHFAEESFE Net cash used in investing activities (483,254) (1,247,640)
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HZE2015F12A31HILEE

Year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
k3 FET FET
Note Us$000 Us$’000
MEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERARRQRIRE 2R E Dividends paid to owners of the Company (200,067) (204,324)
ENDERERIE Z S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (42,359) (43,499)
R IR I 5T 8 3217 Issue of shares under share
&) option scheme 573 9,123
i E5) Repurchase of shares (2,219) —
B ARBRE Net proceeds from issuance of
(EFERKIFE3D) RMB Notes (as defined in note 31) 159,434 —
FEERITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 640,907 1,340,924
EEBRITER Repayments of bank borrowings (736,786) (614,533)
HipgHEE 2 Net movement of
) FEm other short-term borrowings (224,322) 240,512
BIBITERA Acquisition of additional interest
EARE R in subsidiaries upon exercising
N RIFEIME R of put options on shares of subsidiaries — (2,500)
REEE(FTA)ME Net cash (used in) from
HEFHE financing activities (404,839) 725,703
ReRBESEEYN Net decrease in cash
BEiRAD and cash equivalents (112,715) (39,022)
FEYzRERBESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 1,183,103 1,249,890
ERGE) 2 B Effect on exchange rate changes (46,688) (27,765)
FRZBEERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 26 1,023,700 1,183,103
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HZE2015F 12 A31ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of business
is No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and instant food products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2014 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
US$960,357,000 (2074: US$1,293,211,000) at the end of the
reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets
at fair value, and financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI") are presented, separately
from owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
‘transactions with non-controlling interests reserve’ within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 12 years
— Beverages 10 to 12 years
— Instant food and others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes all construction expenditure and other direct costs,
including interest costs, attributable to such projects. Costs
on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held by
owner or lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property
and carry at fair value.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



3.

=
e

FEETHERE)

(e)

()

REMEHEE)

REMFEHEARAEBENRK
FEHRIIER - BB EH AR
EBEZBMELMNEL A
EHBs REUBHENR
REBEEEREBFERTNEE
B WABLHRER R
EZVEMGERNE(EE
B {E - 2 A BELRETS
BE  IRX-—DERAIEM[BEZ
FEEBRESTMEMES ZHE
MRAFR5EENEIHRRIR
MR E - R B BAIETT
FoBERIFRENEN -

REMERHE LR EBKA
RIEFERARERNLEREE
BRERN 2 B4 IEFERR -
RIETERMEME LR IMAIE
S (BHEMSREFENEE
MEREENZ R E )T AREB
RILERHAREERT

B AE

AT &g

EBEHTIRBZHrEEE
RUEBIAR A BERR 5
MARERAAARMNERSF
Hi - WIARAKR SRR ERAE
MR REBERBERY - #iH
ERBHEFERFHAER
RRHIR o BB R I TR
B EFETHE -

2015 Annual Report F#§

BRI MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

®

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The fair value is based
on market value, being the estimated amount for which
a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties have each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset

Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group’s share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the investee.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

0]

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading and financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as investment revaluation reserve within equity
until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of,
or until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments is reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other non-
current liabilities. All financial liabilities except for derivatives
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Obligations arising from put options on shares of subsidiaries
written to non-controlling shareholders

Put option written to non-controlling shareholders, which
will be settled other than by exchange of fixed amount
of cash for a fixed number of shares in a subsidiary is
treated as derivative and is recognised at fair value upon
initial recognition. Any changes of fair value in subsequent
reporting dates are recognised in profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares in a subsidiary is established even if the obligation
is conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the Group. The liability for the share
redemption amount is initially recognised and measured
at present value of the estimated repurchase price with
the corresponding debit to the non-controlling interests.
In subsequent periods, the remeasurement of the present
value of the estimated gross obligation under the written
put option to the non-controlling shareholders is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the commercial properties are let out and on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms while rental income
from car parks are recognised on an accrual basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is United States Dollar ("US$"”) and majority of
its subsidiaries have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional
currency. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operaitons”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b) Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(n)

()

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,

where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs

that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition, is calculated using

the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value

represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset, interest in associates, interest
in joint ventures and prepaid lease payments may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(@)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(s)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. Past service cost is measured as the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulted
from a plan amendment or curtailment and is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest expense for the period is determined
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period
to the defined benefit liability. The discount rate is the yield
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds of
the PRC that have maturity dates approximating the terms
of the Group's obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group's employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(v)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company'’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
libailities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. FESHBEK(E) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) EBREAL (w) Related parties
RAHE A T R RS B A R A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
EASKEES - Group:
(@) fHEATAL  BIZAL (@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
HEALTZEREAREE related to the Group if that person:
B kg
() Pl gk A 4 H AR () Has control or joint control over the Group;
£H
(i HAEBBEKRY (i) Has significant influence over the Group; or
25
(i) BARRIZEEE (i) Is a member of the key management personnel
BEKE - of the Group.
(b) fEFFE THIMEAAI R - AN (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
BREEAEEARE following conditions applies:
() ZERALAEEE (i) The entity and the Group are members of the
A—%BEsKE R same group (which means that each parent,
(B & & A 7 subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
IEPNGIDEES ) others).
BARREEEE
AN
YH
iy EREREZ—EHH (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BE QRS EEDR other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
¥ (HES—EBEAK member of a group of which the other entity is
ERAEEET a member).
BB AR ZEE R
Al EERE) -
(i) FEEEYAER— (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
B 2EERE party.
vy BERAFE=-ZFER (iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
EELE M3 and the other entity is an associate of the third
—ERBRZE=F entity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company'’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/

revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to

HKASs 16 and 38
Amendments to

HKASs 16 and 41

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
Annual Improvements
Project

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Disclosure Initiative '

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation’

Bearer Plants '

Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements’

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts '
2012-2014 Cycle !
Revenue from Contracts

with Customers?
Financial Instruments ?
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture ’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 The effective date of the amendments which was originally

intended to be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016 has been deferred/removed

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact of the future adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs
and amendments, but are not yet in a position to reasonably
estimate their impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011): Defined Benefit Plans -
Employee Contributions

The narrow-scope amendments apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The objective
of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee service,
for example, employee contributions that are calculated according
to a fixed percentage of salary. These amendments do not have
an impact on these consolidated financial statements as the
defined benefit plans operated by the Group are wholly funded
by contributions from the Group and do not involve contributions
from employees or third parties.
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ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS (Continued)

Annual Improvements Project: 2010-2012 Cycle

The amendments relevant to the Group include the followings.

(1)

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

The amendments add definitions for “performance
condition” and “service condition” which were previously
part of the definition of “vesting condition” and update the
definitions of “vesting condition” and “market condition”.
It specifies in the definition of performance condition that
a vesting condition requires specified performance target(s)
to be met. A performance target can be defined not only
by reference to the operations (or activities) of the entity or
the price (or value) of its equity instruments, but also the
operations (activities) of another entity in the same group or
the price (or value) of the equity instruments of that entity.
Further, the performance target can also be related to the
performance of the entity as a whole or a part of it or the
group, including a division or an individual employee. The
period for achieving the performance target shall not extend
beyond the end of the service period but may start before
(provided not substantially before the commencement of)
the service period. The application of the amendments does
not have an impact on the Group.
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4. BWEHELE BIT2EHEB%EHKR 4. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS (Continued)

HER(E)

20102012 AHAEEEIE B Annual Improvements Project: 2010-2012 Cycle (Continued)
(&

2) BEHBEHRETERESH EE (2)  HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

oyt

EAVBREERESFEH HKFRS 8 is updated as follows:

LU

(a) ZAWBEEEENSELME (@ Judgements made by management in aggregating
A BT REI two or more operating segments exhibiting similar
FRIB I AR B A B long-term financial performance and economic
ERREEFTEH A T - = characteristics are required to be disclosed. This
BREME EELEHE includes a brief description of the operating segments
IERETSEEEEDED that have been aggregated and the economic
A B ELEE SR indicators that have been assessed in determining
FTat (i B4 AR 1E o that the aggregated operating segments share similar

economic characteristics.

(b) EBEMOEETIFHZE (b) It is clarified that the reconciliation of the total
MFETBLERESE - 8 reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets is
EEBBEAEROTEE only required to be disclosed if the segment assets
RENEREEENEER - are regularly reported to the chief operating decision

maker.

JEAZEIETHARRRINGE The application of the amendments has no impact on the

HBmMRIWELE - Company's consolidated financial statements.

(3) BEYBREEE13H 21 (3)  HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

G2

R BEENBIIESEAYE The basis for conclusions is amended to clarify that the

MELAE13ROBHRES issuance of HKFRS 13 and the consequential amendments to

VBEREENEIRRELR HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 did not remove the entity’s ability to

AR 3998 Y REIR (B ET I measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated

Mk BRI EIETFIR 2 % interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting,

ZLEAS(EHEFT[FETK when the effect of not discounting is immaterial. The

B - MBS HTIR ) S EAE U R TE 2 application of the amendments does not have an impact on

JEN R 2 e h » BE] R E the amount recognised.

A CERNCRABEZE -
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4.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS (Continued)

Annual Improvements Project: 2010-2012 Cycle (Continued)

“)

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 is amended to clarify that an entity, or any member
of a group of which it is a part, providing key management
personnel services (the “management entity”) to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is
a related party of the reporting entity. The reporting entity
shall disclose the amounts incurred for key management
personnel services that are provided by the management
entity. However, the compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees or directors is not
required to be disclosed. These amendments do not have
an impact on the Group's related party disclosures as the
Group does not obtain key management personnel services
from management entities.

Annual Improvements Project - 2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments relevant to the Group include the followings.

(1)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

These amendments clarify that all contracts within the
scope of HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9 are included in the scope of
the exception as set out in HKFRS 13 for measuring the fair
value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities
on a net basis, even if those contracts do not meet the
definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities in HKAS
32. These amendments do not have an impact on these
consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSS (Continued)

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Owing to inherent risk associated with estimations
in the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows and
fair value less costs to sell, the estimated recoverable amount
of the asset may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of
the estimations.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset of
US$4,000,000 (2014: US$4,000,000) in relation to unused
tax losses had been recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The recognition of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are different from
the original estimate, a material recognition or reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, after taking into account
the utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses, which
would be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

6. REVENUE

The Group's revenue represents the sale of goods at invoiced

value to customers, net of returns, discounts and value added tax.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company'’s executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a
product perspective which forms a basis for business segment
information as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are
conducted in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food and others. The segment of others
includes investment holding, investment properties for rental
purpose, logistics and supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on the net profit for the year and the profit (loss) before
taxation, share of results of associates and joint ventures and
unallocated income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest in
associates and joint ventures and unallocated assets which include
available-for-sale financial assets. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group'’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than available-for-sale financial assets, are located in
the PRC.
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7. 2WER(E) 7.

WHERBE—IIFFEFPHIAMLR
EBUEE10% S F o

M2015F %2014 12 A31 B2 S

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group's revenue.

The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2015

ZERINT and 2014 is as follows:
EB DWW Business segment analysis
2015
Rk
hEE HERR Inter-
Instant %  Instant Hitt  segment &t
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
USS'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000
W& Revenue
IREF YR Revenue from external customers 3,612,658 5243762 136,647 109,743 — 9,102,810
S Wz Inter-segment revenue 84 470 208 137,403  (138,165) —
NHEER Segment revenue 3,612,742 5244232 136855 247,146  (138,165) 9,102,810
PHBLB(CHRABER) Segment result after finance costs 391,326 93976  (14,641)  (15,059) 1216 456,818
EEBENTR Share of results of associates and
EE-UNGE joint ventures — 17,925 (6,643) — - 11,282
KA 2 FWA Unallocated income, net — — — 3,398 — 3,398
BRBLAIE R (B58) Profit (loss) before taxation 391,326 111,901  (21,284)  (11,661) 1,216 471,498
WA Taxation (117,404)  (71,046) (84)  (1,480) —  (190,014)
KEE 2R (B8) Profit (loss) for the year 273,922 40,855  (21,368)  (13,141) 1216 281,484
BE Assets
AHEE Segment assets 3,268,452 4,774,066 145190 1,211,071 (1,122,199) 8,276,580
BENAER Interest in associates - 29,998 67 - - 30,065
RENEER Interest in joint ventures - 72,234 10,507 - - 82,741
AOEEE Unallocated assets 92,120
BEE Total assets 8,481,506
af Liabilities
AHERE Segment liabilities 742,034 3,012,906 56,853 1,797,417 (1,064,866) 4,544,344
AOEEE Unallocated liabilities 42,901
BaR Total liabilities 4,587,245
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7. SHERE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
RSO (E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2015
AR
HEsE FERR Inter-
Instant iR Instant Hitr  segment &it
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total

fEx  FEx  TEx  FEx FErn TEx
US$'000  USS'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000

Hit &R Other information

FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 112,515 410,643 9,002 18,723 — 550,883
EARX Capital expenditures 144,533 319,738 1317 11,99 — 477,582
FBKA Interest income 50,014 8,568 139 12,109  (25187) 45,643
MEZH Interest expenses 661 44,074 — 42290  (25187) 61,838
REBE Impairment loss 9,001 16,901 — — — 25902
AN IERE Termination benefits — &m — — — 8m
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7. 2WER(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ERIBAW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2014
Wi
akid HERM Inter-
Instant Instant Hifr segment At
noodles food Others  elimination Total
FET FET FETL FETL FET
Us$000 Ussooo  US$000  US$000  US$000
& Revenue
IRE PR Revenue from external
customers 4,137,685 178,596 121,282 — 10,237,982
A EE 2 W Inter-segment revenue 51 133 90,287  (91,057) —
NHEEE Segment revenue 4,137,736 178,729 211,569 (91,057) 10,237,982
APEE(CHRAEER) Segment result after
finance costs 434,203 (7,540) (8,221) (2,118) 686,862
ERBERNa R Share of results of associates
AENAEE and joint ventures — (10,661) — - 7,269
AR ZFIH Unallocated expenses, net — — (562) — (562)
BRBLAER (B8) Profit (loss) before taxation 484,203 (18201)  (8783)  (2,118) 693,569
A Taxation (123,815) 752 (1,241) — (208,820
KEE 2R (B8) Profit (loss) for the year 360,388 (17,449)  (10,024) (2,118) 484,749
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 3,446,274 160,291 1,340,036 (1,155,422) 9,018,527
BEARER Interest in associates — 1327 - — 31973
AENAER Interest in joint ventures — 15,807 — — 74,153
AOEAE Unallocated assets 81,404
BEE Total assets 9,206,057
B Liabilities
NHEE Segment liabilities 1,041,013 62,817 1,766,568 (1,100,145) 5,081,691
*PEAE Unallocated liabilities 28,702
BEE Total liabilities 5,110,393
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7. AWEME) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERIBAIW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2014
A
i ol FERM Inter-
Instant #m Instant Hft  segment At
noodles  Beverages food Others  elimination Total

TXT  FET  FEr FET TET AL
Us§000  US$000  USST000  USS000  USS000  US$000

Hit &R Other information

FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 105257 339,819 9,134 9,283 — 463493
BEHX Capital expenditures 340390 591,845 4211 543773 — 1,480,219
HEMA Interest income 59,599 4,833 384 10747 (20696) 54,867
MEXH Interest expenses 37 33886 — 33924 (206%) 47,151
HEEE Impairment loss — — — — - —
AHRIERE Termination benefits — 73017 — — — 73017
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8. HiahzEREMTFWRA 8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$000 Us$’000
H bz Other revenue
K 2 HA Interest income 45,643 54,867
REREHEHERN Gross rental income from
M BA investment properties 1,268 —
46,911 54,867
HAuFlR A Other net income
RitER & Technical consultancy fee 16,615 16,863
i & B o 2 Es Gain on sales of scrapped materials 25,748 29,911
PEMNHEESREE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Z W= financial assets 5,736 —
IR #68 B Government grants 44,996 50,079
Hh Others 22,138 57,681
115,233 154,534
162,144 209,401
9. BRBIADGRA 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
KB (GTA)TFIIER 1% - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$000 Us$°000

MBER

REAMEFZ M B H
B FB T HEAEIA
VER =Y
It E A =
51.96% (2014:2.03%)

Finance costs

AR5 FRNBREEZE ZBTT  Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years 62,524 48,306

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into property,
plant and equipment at weighted average
capitalisation rate of 1.96% (2074: 2.03%)

(686) (1,155)

61,838 47,151
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’000 Us$°000
Hitig B Other items
BIA(BIEESHSE) :  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):

e K IREN Salaries and wages 928,583 947,661

BRRIEHE Termination benefits 42,721 73,017

LARE 2 48 IR (0 S A Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

Z IR 9,089 11,837

RIREH Pension costs:

FEHFETE Defined contribution plans 104,609 108,825
FE @A S Defined benefit plans 3,930 4,152
ZEEME Auditor’s remuneration:

EER Audit fee 1,460 1,460
BEFEKA! Cost of inventories* 6,202,615 7,119,944
weE Depreciation 534,078 454,136
b 518 K5 R Exchange loss, net 31,696 15,742
T+ 0 495 B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 16,051 8,604
B A EHH Amortisation of intangible asset

(BEBERDHEKA) (included in distribution costs) 754 753
WE - BERE#HZ Impairment loss of property,

BEEE(BER plant and equipment (included

HitteEgBRAN) in other operating expenses) 25,902 —
BARBEYIRREEEZE Change in fair value of financial assets or

EENTMEENSHM financial liabilities at fair value

BECARBEERFE through profit or loss, net 7,514 (288)
BEYEEMRD Minimum lease payments in respect of

HEAERK operating lease charges for premises 71,681 72,710
HEE - WER Loss on disposal of property,

Bl i plant and equipment 13,761 3,777
HEZR AR BEHERRE (Gain) Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair

BERERENSREE value through profit or loss

pAC &) (872) 213
AENFIREENFBI 2 Compensation payment to employees of

ES(ET3R joint ventures and associates 22,735 —

# EEFER A+ 715 637,864,000
ZEL (2014 : 768,282,000 % 7T ) #
ETHA  E  +HhHAEEZ
B REZ Y EER L) H R A
5 B 5 FETE _F A HH #IE B B A8 BE
o

2015 Annual Report F#§

# Cost of inventories includes US$637,864,000 (2014:
US$768,282,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation, amortisation
of prepaid lease payments and operating lease charges of premises,
which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above.
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10.

EEREREEMSE 10. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

AAEEERAITRAHE KRR
ZMeBEmT :

EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by
the Company’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:

2015
HER HROXE  RHRE
Htpie R MR
BEEhe Salaries i Share-  Retirement
Directors’  and other Discretionary based scheme by
fees emoluments bonuses ~ payments contribution Total

FER FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Uss000  USS000  USSO00  USS000  USS000  USS000

HiTEE - Executive directors:
M Wei Ing-Chou 200 1,032 99 1,091 - 2,422
HEE— Junichiro Ida 80 32 - - - 112
HER Ryo Yoshizawa 17 4 - - - 21
REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 8 - - - 58
BRER Wei Ying-Chiao 4 4 = = - 8
REEE Teruo Nagano 50 16 - — — 66
Br4 Wei Hong-Ming 46 4 — = — 50
kRER Koji Shinohara 3 16 - - - 49

BUHFHTEE - Independent non-executive directors:
THER Hsu Shin-Chun 50 16 - - - 66
ERE Lee Tiong-Hock 50 12 - - - 62
REE Hiromu Fukada 50 16 — — — 66

7B 8% Chief executive officer:

ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 2,110 89 988 - 3,187

630 3,270 188 2,079 — 6,167
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On 1 January 2015, Mr. Wei Ing-Chou ceased to be the chief
execuitive officer of the Company and Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei
was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 4 February
2015.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. EEREREEMES(Z) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
MR2015F3 A8H & 12 = %t & & Mr. Ryo Yoshizawa deceased on 8 March 2015 and Mr. Koji
o 201595 A28 BKRER L Shinohara was appointed as an executive director of the Company
HERZEAERNRRZHITES - on 28 May 2015.
2014
Hek DRAZE  RINMRE
Efi#e ZHE BN
EEH Salaries bzl Share-  Retirement
Directors' and other  Discretionary based scheme st
fees  emoluments bonuses payments  contribution Total

TET TET TET TET TET TET
ussooo  Usso00  USS000  USSO00  USS000  USS000

HiTEE: Executive directors:

RN Wei Ing-Chou 200 1,016 395 1,591 3 3,205

HEE— Junichiro Ida 80 16 - - - 9%

HER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 8 — — — 58

REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 - - - - 50

HER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 8 - - - 58

REEE Teruo Nagano 50 8 — — — 58
BUHHTEE Independent non-

executive directors:

et Hsu Shin-Chun 50 8 — — — 58

ERE Lee Tiong-Hock 50 4 - - - 54

ARBZE Hiromu Fukada 50 8 - - - 58

630 1,076 395 1,591 3 3,695

R2015%F K 2014912 B31 B ILF No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
BWEEEWESEIHE - ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
REBALBELAHFEEMALRER No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
M esEEEMAREFTE N as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
FENAE AT B LB ELEE o compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

10.

EEREREEME(F)

REBESUZEHALTEEIM
EERTHRBEC014F - 1fvZE
%) HleFBEHEN EXER3TA
(20144 - 4f7) - Efle BER
RAEVEMEWEI7(b) » H&r34
(20144 - 4fz7) AT 2 Ble 5B W
-

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one director and the chief executive
officer (2074: one director) whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above and three individuals (2074: four)
whose emoluments are included in note 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the emoluments of the remaining
three individuals (2074 four) are as follows:

2015 2014

FET FET

Us$000 Us$’000

FekEMmiNe Salaries and other emoluments 2,610 3,886
VAR 321+ 2 5RIE Share-based payments 1,808 2,014
TEAL Discretionary bonuses 207 643
IRRIRERT S50 Retirement scheme contribution — 4
4,625 6,547
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Y 3RI(20144F - 417 ) BEEHA L The emoluments were paid to the three (2074: four) highest paid
ZEEARIIT individuals as follows:
EEAE
Number of individuals
Emoluments band 2015 2014

1,025,642 F T2
1,089,744 % 7T
(8,000,001 7T
%8,500,000/87T)

1,089,745% L&
1,153,846 %7
(8,500,001 /87T
29,000,000/ 7T)

1,410,257 F L E
1,474,3593 7T
(11,000,001 7T
% 11,500,000 7T )

1,730,769 %02
1,794,8713%7C
(13,500,001 /87T

US$1,025,642 to US$1,089,744
(HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

US$1,089,745 to US$1,153,846
(HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)

US$1,410,257 to US$1,474,359
(HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000)

US$1,730,769 to US$1,794,871
(HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000)

Z 14,000,000 7T) 2 —
1,794,872 F L& US$1,794,872 to US$1,858,974

1,858,974 %% T (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000)

(14,000,001 7T

Z 14,500,000 7T) — 1
2,179,487 XL E US$2,179,487 to US$2,243,590

2,243,590 % 7T (HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000)

(17,000,001 7T

% 17,500,000 7T) — 1
3,141,025 L& US$3,141,025 to US$3,205,128

3,205,128 % 7T (HK$24,500,001 to HK$25,000,000)

(24,500,001 87T

% 25,000,000 7T) 1 —

3 4
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11. #H1\E 11. TAXATION
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss$000 Us$°000
AEEHRIE— Current tax - PRC Enterprise income tax
PEIEEREH
REZE Current year 161,048 179,859
VAR & %5 R Over provision in prior year (3,533) (2,132)
157,515 177,727
B IE Deferred taxation
EERERD Origination and reversal of temporary
TR EERFEE differences, net 11,124 4,933
RS EE Effect of tax losses recognised — (4,000)
BAEERFPHZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
Bt 8 2 B A gt 55 Be A1 distributable earnings of the Group's
FRRZ TRIRT (A 5T 33) PRC subsidiaries (note 33) 21,375 30,160
32,499 31,093
REERIALTE Total tax charge for the year 190,014 208,820
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MEREYTHARARAEELZ
WABUAERITLIR -

HRAEE L AFIREE2015F K&
2014 F A & 1] B 7 FI 15 5 e R
MAE - B R 2B BFSHE
IR o

FERREZHE A BB ER
EMEBEEME B25%(2014
F:25%) RIBBES - BB
FEHBE R B RS M ACE
RAEANEBABAFEEBEER
W B 2 S RE /9 3 &0 ) (B %8 [2011]58
%) - LR B K BE PR IRk I ([ 78 5D
HE )R B RE BN R E AN IR
Er¥ HEBEEXEZTZERAML
TEAIARNT70% A/ - £2011
FE020FFE - BIEI15% W
RYWMSEMSEE - At - A& E
RS E 2 B AR HER15%
(20144 : 15%) °

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The applicable PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is at the statutory rate of 25% (2074: 25%). According to the Tax
Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development
of Western Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation and China Customs, foreign
investment enterprises located in the western region of the PRC
(the "Western Region”) with principal revenue of over 70%
generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled
to an income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located
in the Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15%
(2014:15%).

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

11. TAXATION (Continued)

A& B 2 BR B R A B AN G 2 A IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERW T for the year as follows:
BIEM 2Bk Reconciliation of tax expense
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$‘000 Us$’000
B A5 A4t ) Profit before taxation 471,498 693,569
BHEVEERE 25% Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%

ZHBIE(20144F : 25%) in the PRC (2014:25%) 117,875 173,392
JEEERE BB AFI%EAE  Share of results of associates and joint ventures (2.820) (1,853)
AT HORL B 2 Non-deductible expenses 25,674 15,205
EERTUA Tax exempt revenue (7,082) (512)
RERIIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 48,852 26,312
RERERHE=R Unrecognised temporary differences 710 (5,809)
B BESL AMERMIEEIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (9,589) (12,103)
RAEENRPE 2B AT Effect of withholding tax on the distributable

A 3 B R 2 TR IR profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

(Hiat33) (note 33) 21,375 30,160
R ERH[E By Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries

P8 2 B 2 BLUOR in Western Region (5,418) (7,199)
ARTFJE Z 5T Over provision in prior years (3,533) (2,132)
Hity Others 3,970 (6,641)
REFEHIA Tax expense for the year 190,014 208,820

2015 Annual Report F#§
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12. BRE 12. DIVIDENDS
(@) AARBREREFERESRZIX (@)  Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
g the year:
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$°000
HERABEIRZAHME  Final dividend proposed after the end of the
FigEmA 2.29 El reporting period of US2.29 cents
(2014 4F : &% (2014: US3.57 cents) per ordinary share
Bk 3.57 %) 128,306 200,054

201643 A22H B & % -
ESERARERAREGRE
AT 229 - L EZERE
A EBRANFERRASE
BB BRI AEZE2016
F1N2ANBLEFENRER
Mo WEBRRARENGSH
BRRTRR TR BEMRE

RARFERERREREN L
—HBEETARRRRZE

At meeting held on 22 March 2016, the directors
recommended the payment of final dividend of US2.29
cents per ordinary share. The proposed dividend will
be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in the
year ending 31 December 2016 if it is approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed final
dividend has not been recognised as dividend payables in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

/RS year:
2015 2014
FET F#ET
Us$°000 Us$°000
AR F AL KRR Final dividend in respect of the previous
IE AR EE B R financial year, approved and paid during
AIEERAARE the year, of US3.57 cents
RERERR (2014: US3.65 cents) per ordinary share
3.57 Al
(2014 F : HR
B 3.65 %) 200,067 204,324
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HZE2015%F 128310 LFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

13. SRER 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
T AEREREF &TREE S The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
FlzatE - follows:
(a) BREXEF (a) Basic earnings per share
2015 2014
RARMREF AN  Profit attributable to ordinary
s (F3ET) equity shareholders (US$'000) 256,340 400,482
BEITE B ZINME  Weighted average number of
TR (T A%) ordinary shares ('000) 5,603,569 5,599,873
FRREAHEFI(=ML)  Basic earnings per share (US cents) 4.57 7.15
(b) EBREFRA (b) Diluted earnings per share
2015 2014
RABIEERNENL  Profit attributable to ordinary
A (FZETT) equity shareholders (US$'000) 256,340 400,482
BRI T2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(#8)(T/HR) (diluted) (000)
BTSRRI
T % & Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,603,569 5,599,873
NAEIERERT S
R Effect of the Company's share option scheme 7,235 15,108
RARFEERES Weighted average number of ordinary shares
il | Pl =1 Y for the purpose of calculating
N F98 diluted earnings per share 5,610,804 5,614,981
FA#E R FI(=0L)  Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 4.57 7.13
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14. REMEME 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Us$°000
NRE At fair value
EEME - BE KRB Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 75) 52,650
(Krat15)

5 + AR XR(E (#752 16) Transfer from prepaid lease payments (note 16) 101,848

AEER At the end of the reporting period 154,498

(@) AEFEEUHEHESIERN (@ The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
BEYERESEIGE U REREN T commercial properties and car parks together with their
WAL EEBHEMRF R FEH respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1686
TR R KR1686%5 &% 1678 and No. 1678 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
g o the PRC.
A& E MR EY L 10-50 All the investment properties are held under an unexpired
F 2R AD BB LEES - lease term of 10-50 years.
R A F2015412 8318 |F During the year ended 31 December 2015, those
FE BRANEEMEAME commercial properties and car parks together with their
RieEE R HBE T IS respective prepaid lease payments at fair values in aggregate
B2 A4 1E 154,498,000 % of US$154,498,000 were transferred from property, plant
T EEBEEREERE % and equipment and prepaid lease payments to investment
BB BRI Y %E properties when there was change in use. The valuation
BEMELTME  RkE surplus of US$2,026,000 between the carrying values
SHMEREEARABEZEY and the fair values of those assets which were valued by
EHA%BEEEE2,026,000%E an independent professional qualified valuer at the date
T WREMEmEKEHEDR of change in use was recognised in other comprehensive
Rats A EEEEER - income and recorded in property revaluation reserve. The
BN ER BT E Y investment properties were revalued by the independent
A BB EER2015F 12 B professional qualified valuer at 31 December 2015 and their
MMAERH MEAAREBEDAE fair values remained at US$154,498,000.

154,498,000 3 7T, ©

138 estiziE1R25 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



=
e

14, REMEMEE)

(b)

DR BEAEMFERE

HERELEMENAREBE
R NEREHEERERESR
EERMEMETHE - BE
BRBEXSERNGER
EYEE  BYBEEOM[ER
A EELE ABUE - h1E
B Z L BOE RS E NMEE
(ERE)FL - REES
FEYEMAB AL EMNT
BHREN2EAEEELET
M EARBTEUYENE
ERERFERE - EFA
RAMERMELEXRTDE2EZMHE
B L 5% 3 [ B BRI ) SR B AR P
SHkEE  BEREGLER
FrRIsL S B X BN T
REAERER - £HEYE
NFEER  MENRS MK
=R AEBRAR -

AEBZREEFEHMENAR
BEFEIEELIABENS
3R RANFEEARRBAHR
BEERBIHBRRIZEL -

im

2015 Annual Report F#§

BRI MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it
is the Group's policy to engage independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach, or where appropriate,
direct comparison approach. In the valuation, the market
rentals of all lettable units of the commercial properties are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by
reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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14. REMEMEZ)
(b) DAREESEMTGETRE)

ERAREURFRMEBEZ A

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The following table gives information on significant

BER@AZENT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
TABERNGHNEHE

REZLORIEZE SEATTHASLENEZY ARABENEE

REMERE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
[GlEkUES W EAME
Commercial Income capitalization

properties approach

EEBY

The key inputs are:

TR = ZRIESBMAER L WERA RS E SRR DB EHN
MHeEEEEEEE i e REMFEHENR
HeEWEEER55% ° TEEHEREATYK ke

Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of Aslight increase in the reversion
the capitalization of the rental yield used would result in a
derived from the existing tenancies significant decrease in the
with due allowance for reversionary fair value measurement of the
rental potential of the properties, investment properties, and vice
of 5.5%. versa.

i A8 EBIHH U RHBYESR FANEATEBSEAENL
WERG 2 HANERNEE gt REUEHENDT
mrmkFE - §ATSES BEAEEERNLA k2
I RRA AR TR TR
HARKI1BOTEARK 2407

Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into Aslight increase in the monthly

140

account of time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, of ranging from
RMB180 to RMB240 per square
metre per month on

lettable area basis.

market rent used would result
in a significant increase in the
fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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HZE2015%F 128310 LFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
AABERGHNEHE

REXLORIEZE EATTHASENEZY ARBENEE
REMELE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value

BREEBE
b Direct comparision
Car parks approach

The key input is:

BHEER ZRIEME B RERYE R AR EMHEER—B L

2015 Annual Report F#§

Unit sale rate

WERG 2 FNENEE
MEAERERE  SEFELEE
AARK 130,000t
AE#165,0007T °

Unit sale rate, taking into account the

time, location, and individual factors,

such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and
the properties, of ranging from
RMB130,000 to RMB165,000
per unit for car park spaces.

eYREANFBHENATERE
AAERRAGMB LR - &
IR

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an increase
in the fair value measurement of
the investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.
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15. ¥ - BBRFRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

& 5%
&L &L
KA5E Machinery — Flectical — HERE  FRIE

Ti BF and  appliances  Miscellaneous  Construction At
Freehold land Buiding  equipment and equipment equipment in progress Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Uss000 Uss 000 Uss000 Uss000 Uss 000 Uss000 Usso00

iz (Wih)

(Note 3) Note b)

BEENK-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount
14512531 - year ended 31 December 2014
i3

RER At beginning of year 17,485 1,261,815 3,348,382 20,183 286,672 550,563 5,485,100
HE Additions — 23,291 158,157 3,590 91,521 744,083 1,020,642
ERGER Transfer upon completion — 102480 312373 1278 2558 (440,689) -
HE Disposals - (10,907) (1.836) (483) (6,312) - (19,498)
HE-HHBAT Disposal of a subsidiary - (19921) (30,529) (237) (1,253) - (51,940)
g Depreciation - (69,431) (274,814) (5,097) (104,794) - (454,136)
EiZE Exchange differences (1019 (27,585) (67,905) 7 (9,145) (14,332) (120,263)
REER At end of the reporting period 16,466 1,259,742 3,443,828 18,997 281,47 839,625 5,859,905
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15. ¥ - WBRRREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Ea
EC I E
KAEE Machinery — Electricl — BERE  HRIR
i 5 and  appliances  Miscellaneous  Construction ait
Freehold land Building  equipment and equipment  equipment in progress Total

77 7 1 FEr i i 77
Uss'ooo s Ussooo Ussooo s Usstooo Ussooo
(fiia) ()

(Note a) (Note b)

REEYE-8ZF Reconciliation of carrying amount

0155128318 - year ended 31 December 2015

[12:3:4
RER At beginning of year 16,466 1,259,742 3,443,828 18,997 281,247 839,625 5,859,905
HE Additions = 19,051 163,510 3510 87,682 183,843 457,5%
BftEREEL Revaluation for assets transferred

FEkEHE to investment properties - - - - - 553 553
ERSRENENE Transfer to investment properties - - - - - (52,650) (52,650)
EBEWE) Impairment loss (Vote ¢/ - - (25,902) - - - (25,902)
EkER Transfer upon completion - S8 B8 £y} 36880 (497,921 -
ih& Disposals - (84200 (153%) (1,423) (8371) - (33,613)
& Depreciation = (76,734) (327,603) (5,068) (124,673) = (534,078)
ELEE Exchange differences (589) (57,971) (135,947) (970) (24,429) (55,331) (275,237)
REER At end of the reporting period 15877 135919 3,339,673 15373 248,336 418119 5396574
R201551818 At 1 January 2015
FE Cost 16,466 1,730,692 5,581,461 55,380 867,250 839,625 9,090,874
ZHNENRESE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses - (470,950)  (2,137,633) (36,383) (586,003) - (3,230,99)
EE%E Net carying amount 16,466 1,259,742 3443828 18,997 281,247 839,625 5,859,905
R2015812A31R At 31 December 2015
RE Cost 15871 1,878,256 5,642,998 47,861 878,891 418,119 8,882,002
BHNENNESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment osses - (519,060)  (2.303,325) (32,488) (630,555) —  (3,485429)

BEFE Net carrying amount 15871 1,359,196 3,339,673 15373 248,336 418,119 5,396,574
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15. 3% - #BRRREE)
HisE -

(@) EHRRMUREELAIMGKA KR

Tt o

(b) REER AEEETHRENEE
BEREFANEEHRBEFRTZ
T AR AT A ARES - REFE
#A %8 59,491,000 JT(2014 4 -
10,622,000 L) » EERE » N
FEEEEBEURFERELEESE

) o

(0 FR AEEETTAREISED
SUEMSRERTNES - AN
BRI BEEARETHRREFMS
EHHERR - BEWE  FF2E
LB E KA - AR KB B
MBS RASRE o Et - FELfEH
% B B 1 fE RR 51 7% 25,902,000 55
T(20144F : %) » AT E &
BIZRENGUAERE M=

ERHEREEREE -

16. TiHEARE

THB AR A S B R AL R B35 A 10-50
FzBHRENANEE LK
R o KA E BB - REE R
12 & A A & #E 85 & %8 7% 13,709,000
EJL(20144F : 18,453,000% L) B
ST ATE FRIE R H A EUIE © AR
2201512 A31BIEFER > BE
7%100,375,000 & T H) T 88 = 4%
BMEEHE WA EREM -

HANREEA 101,848,000 7T °
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain premises with aggregate net
carrying amount of US$9,491,000 (20714. US$10,622,000) have not
been obtained due to application for the changes of granted land
use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the Group
validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable
amounts of its manufacturing machineries with impairment
indicators, having regards to the ongoing programme of
modernisation, expansion and the introduction of new product
lines. The review determined that a number of those assets
were to be impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of these
manufacturing machineries were written down by US$25,902,000
(2014: US$Nil). The estimates of the recoverable amounts of these
manufacturing plant and machineries were principally based on
their value in use that were estimated to be nil.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land with

unexpired lease term between 10-50 years in the PRC. The cost is

amortised over the leasehold period. The amount to be amortised

within twelve months after the end of the reporting period
amounted to US$13,709,000 (2074 US$18,453,000) and is
included in prepayments and other receivables. A portion of land

with carrying amount of US$100,375,000, which was revalued to
the fair value of US$101,848,000 at the date of change in use,
was transferred to investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

17. BEEE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSET
SRR
Concession right
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$°000 Us$°000
IREEYR Reconciliation of carrying amount
REH] At beginning of the year 27,305 28,058
iy Amortisation (754) (753)
REER At end of the reporting period 26,551 27,305
REER At end of the reporting period
BXA Cost 29,377 29,377
RET Accumulated amortisation (2,826) (2,072)
26,551 27,305

EFEELIER2012F34%K%4
HEFEECETEERE FFK
EERTAEENESE K-8
- DEREEAEEMBERMLEE
SRERBIBER  ARERPBEKRE
Y EF E R IR M UCER AR R - IR IE R
BEHFIEZH39FH - BEKE
FTIREEY -

BNEERBRAEAGFTELER
BERFHREETRENR -

2015 Annual Report F#§

The intangible asset represents a concession right acquired as
a result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty free basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Intangible asset is measured using cost model and is tested for
impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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18. MEBLHE

MR2015F 12 A3TB T EWE A A
2B IR A M SRR 5E 44 -

RAE T ERARRAFEELARGE

BARKEES -

EANABNBRR

AEER/E IR F B RE KR
ZRRAER B ([FEEERmIER])
MERRAEDZ NRERE REX
SEES-—REFEZHENBER
B RBREERBRRAREER
MERMEREETEERRERTE
ETERE - REOERREREES

YREBEELZHRRERES

B 8 8K fn P2 X D SR A0 AR BEE B © AN
RAEEZRR/AKE BB REEK
an 1R AR O FR R o PTUA - FREM B K
izl M E B QR EARG S T

HERPAFAR -

SEMNERDHEREZZHBATN

TRINRAEEE-—FBEERNDH
PR R P B AR - FRADE KM
ZRHER - LM BERBERR

MBS R RIFEEEA 28
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18.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are shown in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group holds less than half of the effective equity interests and
voting rights in Tingyi Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd (“TAB").
However, based on a contractual arrangement between the Group
and one of the other investors, the investor has agreed to follow
the Group's voting decision in the board of directors’ meetings of
TAB. The relevant activities which significantly affect TAB's return
are determined by the board of directors of TAB based on simple
majority votes. The directors of the Company concluded that the
Group has control over TAB. Therefore, TAB and its subsidiaries
are consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material NCI

The following table shows the information relating to TAB,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



18. MEBLAT(E)

FREMEIMEKMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

18. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SEMNERSBEREZZHBATN

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BEER(E) material NCI (Continued)

A20155F MR20144

128318 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

DEEERE 2 BB Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 52.49% 52.49%
DERER I 2 W= HE H ) * Proportion of NCI's voting rights* 60% 60%
FET FET

Uss$°000 US$°000

MENBEE Current assets 774,230 921,608
EREEE Non-current assets 4,082,109 4,375,833
mEaE Current liabilities (2,652,834) (2,795,747)
EMBEE Non-current liabilities (342,427) (490,084)
HEE Net assets 1,861,078 2,011,610
DEN R RMEE Carrying amount of NC| 987,571 1,063,973

* T EREAEEES REEZRR

FRBELHIZE

2015 Annual Report F

*

exclude the effect of the contractual arrangement on voting right
between the Group and one of the other investors.
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18.

MR 2R ()

SEMNERSHRREZZHBATN

18. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

MRER(E) material NCI (Continued)
HZE2015%F HZE2014F
12A31H 12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FETT
Uss’000 Us$'000
W &= Revenue 5,244,232 5,801,005
REE 5 F Profit for the year 40,855 153,952
Hih 2 EEE Other comprehensive loss (116,206) (49,588)
2HE(BE)Ra@s Total comprehensive (loss) income (75,351) 104,364
LR E R Profit attributable to NCI 24,016 82,006
DERERR R B2 E I Total comprehensive (loss) income
attributable to NCI (36,192) 55,977
BRI E Dividends paid to NCl 41,317 42,597
s (A) Rens$58 Net cash flows from (used in):
K EED Operating activities 583,382 211,353
KEEY Investing activities (305,928) (555,954)
BEEED Financing activities (306,373) 386,163

148

et t=13EMRAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FREMEIMEKMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

19. BAENTRER 19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$ 000 Uss’ooo
JE T - HRABAE Unlisted shares, at cost 23,610 23,610
PRI B 4R Share of post-acquisition results 8,192 8,121
B BB & 8 B W% F| Dividend received since acquisition (652) —
E N =58 Exchange difference (1,085) 242
30,065 31,973
REEE RS AR ZBRMAENIT ¢ Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEE/
e B
Principal AEERFEZ
place of HEMEARLH
business FMBA  Proportion of effective
BeNRER and place of Registered  ownership interest ~ FEEHK
Name of associates incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2015 2014
MMAZAIERHER LA i US$10,400,000  11.88% | 11.88% HERHEERS
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
HREETESNERAA hE US$16,000000  23.75% | 2375% HERHEERE
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
F2(MRRERAT i US$3,500,000 49% 49% SUERHERR
Kongquan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and
sales of candies
MEF(LB)AEERAA] hE US$5,000,000 45% 45% HEPERERAM
Wakodo (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. # PRC Sales of milk product and
commodity for babies
# BT A O (i 5 B # English translation for identification purposes only.
BA | R A B A N B Ty AR AE 2555 51 BE All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
EEABESRER o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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19. BENTER(E) 19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

BRFEAREDT 2HBER

TRINRAREZE AR Z @
RISEE A S QXA AR REE M
AEBERIGES -

Financial information of individually immaterial associates

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and
the Group's share of results of associates that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

M2015F 2014 F
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FZEIT
Uss’000 USs$°000
E=EEE Carrying amount of interests 30,065 31,973
BZE2015F HE20147F
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss’00o Us$°000
NEBFE - Group's share of:
REEHF Profit for the year 71 3,317
2 Al Other comprehensive income — —
EHEWEERE Total comprehensive income 71 3,317

EERA AEERAENERD

BN o

= material to the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, no associates are individually
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
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20. AELNRIER 20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$°000
JE T - HRABAE Unlisted shares, at cost 75,724 75,724
PRI B 4R Share of post-acquisition results 30,374 19,163
B U EE 1 8 B W AR A Dividend received since acquisition (20,664) (20,664)
P 5 Z=RE Exchange difference (2,693) (70)
82,741 74,153
REERESE AR ZEMAENTT ¢ Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TEEES
it
Principal AEBREEZ
place of EMERLH
operation/ HMAA  Proportion of effective
BENTEHE Place of Registered  ownership interest ~ TEE#H
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2015 2014
BEERRRBRD PRC US$11,000,000  31.82% | 31.82% Process and sale of
Fujian Sintongho Foods Co., Ltd. agricultural products
REMMRAARAA PRC US$20,000,000 45% 45%  Manufacture and sale
Calbee (HangZhou) Foods Co., Ltd. of snack food products
FEEMRBERDA PRC US$24,000,000 60% 60%  Process and sale
(AIEARLE(RI)RmBRAR) of meat products
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as
Kangpu (Wujiang) Food Co., Ltd.)
TEBRTERNBRAR PRC US$28,120,000  23.75% | 23.75%  Manufacture and
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
ERBETERHBRL PRC RMB150,000,000 38% 38%  Manufacture and
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
ARE(LE)ARERAR PRC US$7,000,000  21.38% | 21.38%  Process and sale of beverages
Kagome (Shanghai) Beverages Co., Ltd.
A FErE A E AR iRz A IR All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
AR ET o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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20.

RERRER(E)

BEANAERRBRR

AEEZER—HE2ENBRAFER
B (BN ReBRAF6E0%NERE
& A REZZ2EMNBRAES
—REEZENARWGZE - HRRE
CIFRAEAFENEBEEBALHA
BREEBORE - Bt - XEERR
HRERTHREEFRERALARE
4 o

BERFERSEDNRAZHBER

T RN AR B 3% 510 2 {E Bl 3F
EREGERAAMNEEREERNSE
BIEIG AR

20.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee's return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

R2015 4 20144
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss‘000 Us$’ooo
HEmAREE Carrying amount of interests 82,741 74,153
HZE2015%F HZE2014F
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$°000
REEEN - Group's share of:
NEE W Profit for the year 11,211 3,952
H b2 Other comprehensive income — —
2HEW LR Total comprehensive income 11,211 3,952

EZRA AEERAEMNERD

ABAT -

152

material to the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
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20. EENRER(E) 20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
A Commitments
REBBNUTHAZE AR ERIERA The Group has the following unrecognised commitments relating
ZRRYEIE - to its interest in joint ventures.
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$'000
IR E R L ER - Commitments to contribute funding
or resources for:
BE N AR Interest in joint ventures 1,575 1,575
21. THHESHEE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
2015 2014
BtaE FET FZET
Note Uss$’000 Us$°000
REES Investment funds (@), (b)
ARE At fair value 73,168 75,664
I L RAE S Equity securities, unlisted (b)
AU At fair value 15,600 —
I EHRAE S Equity securities, unlisted ()
[R1E At costs 3,694 3,730
BEEE Impairment losses (342) (342)
3,352 3,388
92,120 79,052
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21.

ARHESHEE(#F

Baz -
(a)

KEESANAEMQI4F: &
B ESZERE - DRIBKIRHE
EENERETABLE KX
REAMNBEREAAEBLE K
VYREBEAZBHS([RER L
SENHBRMNBERETRAE KK
RPBEMETL UABERLAE
EHEEACTIRAEERMES
B # © 9,492,000 3% TT(2014 % :
43,349,000 ¢ ) E R F A E M
BREES -

REER  RERSHARBRIE
ITTRARERHEBHEESKEEK
EBERBAME - AREZEECH
BRARZFUNEFAERRESE R
BEREENRN - ©% 45,560,000 T
(2014 : 11,040,000% 7T ) » & &
BEEMAn B ERMAZEER
T e BEZ R BRI REARE B 15
MM 40 ©

U E I EMEARE S 2 ERIAK
RRBER —FKARE 2 EE AR
BEE AaBEFEAABECH
EEREZMABEANNSEETD
BETREEENE  EFER AL
MEZ AR EETER S
B AEEREHEELILETR
REHHER °

AHEESREETDATIERES

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(a)

The investment funds represent investments in five (2014: five)
funds which were set up as limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey, company with liability limited
by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and trust
in the PRC respectively, aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably
and increasing return on asset. During the year, US$9,492,000
(2014: US$43,349,000) was paid to acquire the investment funds.

The fair values of the investment funds and unlisted equity
investments were valued by the respective investment managers or
trust administrator at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value of US$5,560,000 (2074. US$11,040,000) were credited
to investment revaluation reserve. The valuation techniques and
significant inputs used in the measurement of the fair values of the
investment funds are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed. The directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The Group has no intention to dispose
of these unlisted equity securities.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

= following currencies:
2015 2014
FET FET
uss$‘000 Us$000
ETL us$ 76,897 51,723
AR RMB 13,562 25,668
et New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 1,435 1,435
Eb Others 226 226
92,120 79,052
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22. BAAREBHELERTEZEREE  22. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR VALUE

NWERMEE (BE) THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2015 2014
Bfat FET FET
Note Uss'000 Uss$’00o
BE-FEEERE Assets - investments held for trading
RBEBLAIN T Equity securities, listed
¥ NE outside Hong Kong — 2,352
BE-FEERYHA Labilities - derivatives not designated
ITEMNTETA as hedging instruments
HMEEA([IRS]) Interest rate swap (“IRS") (22a) (24) —
T X BN =12 8 Cross currency interest
(fcesh rate swaps (“CCS") (22a) (9,056) —
(9,080) —
22(a) RIEEBHHTANTETIR 22(a) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
RAEEH] - CCSHIRSE & 1y The notional principal amount of the outstanding CCS and
A& S%EHR/A5160,803,0003 IRS at the end of the reporting period was US$160,803,000
L }280,000,000FE 7T * $74 & and US$80,000,000 respectively. The maturities of the
BTEMIEAYBAEEY derivatives are expiring after more than 1 year but not
B1E - BAEBIBSE o ANEFH exceeding 5 years at the end of the reporting period. The
SNREMETEMBNER objective of these derivatives entered into by the Group is to
FRAEA DRI RITHA R K I E mitigate the foreign exchange and interest rate exposures
(FEAMEE31) MELEMIN arising from the RMB Notes (as defined in note 31) issued by
FERFERBERTS e the Company but do not qualify for hedge accounting. Their
Ho AR EBEEREMENE(L corresponding changes in fair values have been recognised
25 BEEHHRAERE - £ in profit or loss. During the year, losses on change in fair
FE  FEBCCSTIRSHIZHE - value of CCS and IRS arrangements in an aggregrate
KAREBESSZBLXAEES amount of US$7,514,000 (2074: US$Nil) was charged to
467,514,000 T E 5 A% B8 profit o loss.
&= (2014%F « &) -
HERAALBEYELREER The valuation techniques and significant inputs used in the
EEREmemadE s MERDT measurement of the financial liabilities at fair value through
REXEEE  JRREEHH profit or loss are set out in note 40 to the consolidated

WERMIEE40 © financial statements.
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23. F& 23. INVENTORIES
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’o00o Us$°000
R R Raw materials 140,548 180,430
P Ch Work in progress 10,310 11,972
RIRK Finished goods 174,935 194,556
325,793 386,958
24. FEUWERR 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’o00o Us$°000
JE WS AR X Trade receivables
—%=h — From third parties 223,194 230,676
—AREZEERR — From companies controlled by a substantial
2 ZHE AT shareholder of the Company 4,817 3,834
/NG — From associates 1,037 1,406
—&%Rna — From joint ventures 4,355 2,323
233,403 238,239
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BN (&) 24.

AEEZHEREDSERUR -
HRTHHEEZEERNEEZR30E0
X o BRABWIRR(FOREREREE
BMEBR) N EERREZAHRRE
ZERER DM IREAR

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The majority of the Group’s sales are cash-on-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014

FET T

Uss$°000 Us3$°000

0-90X 0 - 90 days 215,529 216,763
90 KA k= Over 90 days 17,874 21,476
233,403 238,239

2B HME RIBUE 2 FE U BR R ARk

not impaired is as follows:

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but

2015 2014
FET FET
Us$°000 Us$'000

[REELEE Past due:
30 KA Within 30 days 13,275 15,980
31290k 31-90 days 13,401 16,038
#83H 90 X Over 90 days 10,958 9,663
37,634 41,681

ELBHERRENEBEER =
KEAXAEEZHAERFLENTE
VYEP #HREFEEAESANE
b REMEI &S LR E
BME YHEEEERRELRXA
Wm o AN 5% 183 R B A (] £ 5E Lk
BRER R IR -

58 L6 3F 180 5 3K R OBl 18 #O FE U AR SR AR
B2 B P AN B4 R AR AR AR

MR EEAARKTIE -
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The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the directors believe that the amounts are recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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25. BNEAREMGELR

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2015 2014
BtaE FET FZET
Note Us$’000 Us$’000
BNER Prepayments to suppliers for purchase of
goods 27,475 12,738
B RER Prepayments for purchase of equipment 3,785 7,187
B T AL EE Prepayment for purchase of
prepaid lease payment = 1,920
BHEER Prepaid value-added taxes 91,943 136,225
ENEERY Prepaid operating expenses 202,738 219,269
T NEEREHN  Current portion of prepaid lease payment 6 13,709 18,453
ERER Loan receivables 25(a) 9,327 15,478
Bl —FRE R EHIE Amount due from a subcontractor 25(b) 17,164 57,592
i Others 62,916 63,759
429,057 532,621
25(a) EWER 25(a) Loan receivables
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EWERTBEAEEZHEBR
AIERTEATEMEtER
HEELERBR 2FIE - LF
EWERSEER AR —
FANEERWMEEBHE3.92%
£6.15%(2014F: 56% %
6.56%)MEF o

ARAREEFEHUFIETHR
BERRT-_EARZHENK
B - RIBEBARITHIZH XA
ZEHARKR SR 2 RERSH
B W EEREEEAZAR
BEEZEGHEEREEMS

Loan receivables represent the advances made by wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers of the Group for their operating use. The loan
receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from
the date of drawdown and bear interest ranging from 3.92%
10 6.15% (2014. from 5.6 % to 6.56 %) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period, determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using prevailing
market rate, approximate their corresponding carrying
amount.
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25. ANERREMERR(E)

25(b) B —HBEERE

REBWATHB A RIEMIER
BRmAMRRBCEMNIERE ]
ERASENEEN - RAF
B EEMBEZNREEEMH
T AMENR REE 2 &
W& M TE E 532,564,000 %
7T & #30,800,000% T &
REZHMERNBEE - 2
#930,800,0003 JT(20714 4 :
46,822,00035 7T ) LA B R 6%
STEM R EEMNBEREEFR
—HREHEBABATRARE
ERMHIER o 827 491,764,000
% Jo(20144F : 10,770,000 %
) REERREEH o

W& E H - 17,164,0003% T
(2014 4F : 57,592,000 7T )
R—FRNEEBETEMNRE
N H b fE UK R T8 15,400,000
FELQ014F - #)BRME
NEE BETEMIIERDE
§ °

R AEE BRI\ BB R 2
& U & R K B W — TR 8 B2 7 3R
T8 - IR R AR Y B & R R A
BEHRE -
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25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25(b) Amount due from a subcontractor

Zhangzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. ("ZTFL"), a former
subsidiary of the Group, is currently a subcontractor of
the Group. During the year, a supplementary agreement
was entered with the shareholders of ZTFL to revise the
repayment schedule of the outstanding advances of
US$30,800,000 out of the total amount due from ZTFL
of US$32,564,000 to be settled by three instalments
within two years. Approximately US$30,800,000 (2074:
US$46,822,000) of the total advances bear interest at
6% per annum and are secured by a corporate guarantee
provided by a related party of one of the shareholder of
ZTFL to the Group. The remaining balance of approximately
US$1,764,000 (2074: US$10,770,000) is unsecured and
interest-free.

At the end of the reporting period, US$17,164,000 (20714:
US$57,592,000) is repayable within one year which had
classified under prepayment and other receivables and
US$15,400,000 (20174: nil) is repayable in the second year
which had classified under other non-current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the loan
receivables and amount due from a subcontractor was
due but unpaid and no provision had been made for non-
repayment of the advances and interest.
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26. BekERIKRLIER 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss$000 Us$°000
RITHEBREIRE Bank balances and cash 1,011,652 1,170,900
HEIRIRITIE K Pledged bank deposits 12,048 12,203
RIFERERERIIT As stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 1,023,700 1,183,103
RITERETHER  (EARELRE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
B—RIBITRESBE (BIERITE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
HIEZ)MRITREZERSD - bills, granted to the Group by banks.
B NERIESERNUNTYEES The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
& currencies:
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$°000
AR RMB 946,022 1,030,109
ETT us$ 61,769 123,859
BRT EUR 216 10,891
e NTD 12,808 16,114
HAitb Others 2,885 2,130
BREAANEERZINERE M= E R Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
CRGEE M ERERM T 395 4t - discussion are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

27. BITRA ISSUED CAPITAL
2015 2014
BB EE FET RIHEE FET
No. of shares USs$'000 No. of shares Us$000
JETE ¢ Authorised:
&M% 0.00537C  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each
il 7,000,000,000 35,000 | 7,000,000,000 35,000
BEETRAT Issued and fully paid:
REH) At the beginning of the year 5,603,759,360 28,019 | 5,596,405,360 27,982
RIS Shares issued under share
BT 2 RD option scheme 350,000 2 7,354,000 37
f& 15 B 88 Share repurchased (1,238,000) (7 — —
REEH At the end of the reporting period 5,602,871,360 28,014 | 5,603,759,360 28,019

20154 » 350,000 B2 % 1 & 17 {F LA
REERN T 350,000 B@AAD - 4
RAEA573,000% T + HHF2,0003%
TLE TR - MAE#R 571,000 7T
FFARMIRER - Z4h - 127,000
THEREREEREROEER

REZE2015F 128318 IEEFE -
ol f# 7N A A Bx 321,238,000 /1% © 42
A f817,135,000/% jT(%72,219,000
EL)EHRRRGEER - MERE
7,000 E T AIET AR Bl R -

2015 Annual Report F#§

During the year, 350,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 350,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of US$573,000, of which US$2,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of US$571,000 was credited to the share
premium account. In addition, US$127,000 has been transferred
from the share-based payment reserve to the share premium
account.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 1,238,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were repurchased at a consideration of
HK$17,135,000 (equivalent to approximately US$2,219,000),
which had been debited to share premium account. The total
par values of the repurchased ordinary shares amounting to
approximately US$7,000 had been credited to capital redemption
reserve account.
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HZE2015F 128318 ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

27. BITRA(E)

2015 F RARBIREFBRX 5P EIER

27.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through

PR The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:
EEERGEE
No. of BREX EHEHE
ordinary Price per share Aggregate
m 88 A 4 shares 55 RE consideration
Month of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid
HKS HKS$ HK$'000
20156 A June 2015 220,000 15.48 15.08 3,339
20157 A July 2015 228,000 14.83 13.80 3,270
20158 A August 2015 790,000 13.52 11.86 10,526
1,238,000 17,135
Uss'000
2,219

it IR EIBE I o RERK The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. None of the
NI RAEFRRTEBEN L ER

RAEZ WA -

Company'’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed shares during the year.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

28. BR#HaE 28. SHARE PREMIUM
2015 2014
Uss$‘000 Us$°000
REH] At the beginning of the year 65,421 53,431
IRIE IR MERT 818877 2 B2 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 698 11,990
% 17 21 i Shares repurchased (2,219) —
REER At the end of the reporting period 63,900 65,421

REFASE QAR - B 28
BEIROE  TRENREHHE
BT ERTROKAEN
R EHERERMEERRK -

BhaERZERARRERNSES
RBVEZITE e

ERAEARERREZBERT AR
Al Z B (B A 0k T RXR - HEAR
RERDIREBINERENERERE
EIEH B BB 2 BT -

2015 Annual Report F#§

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

163



e MK ERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015%F 128310 LEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

29. f#fE 29. RESERVES
ELURR
ERRGHE
Transactons REEE  hEER
RGBOER  EEREEE i EAEER B B ERERE
Gl Remeasw-  contoling  Bxhenge  bvesment  Popery  —REE  Sheretwed R
redemption ement ierest  transtion  revaluation  revaluation General payment Retained 8
fesene fesenve feserve fesenve fesenve fesene fesene fesene profis Totdl
= = = 7 = #r % #r r #r
Ussom ussom ussom ussom Uss oo Usson Ussoon Ussoon Ussoon Ussom
H0UETIR1A At 1 January 2014 I (11,205) 161430 428,064 822 - 832613 4259 174451 2,798,879
REREA Profitfortheyear - - - - - - - -
AAE(ER WS Other comprehensive (loss) income
RRBHRFE ERE Remezsurement of dfined
benefis obligations - 1,584 - - - - - - - 1584
ERZE Bxchange diference on consoldation - - - (16,477) - - - - - (76,470
THHESREENAELRD  Ranlecngesin
avallable-fr-sale financial assets - - - - 11,040 - - - - 11,040
Ah2E(FR)ELE Total other comprehensive
(loss) income - 1584 - (T6477) 11,040 - - - - (63853)
KEERE(ER NREE Total comprehensive (loss)
income for the year - 1584 - (T6477) 11,040 - - - 400482 336,629
HRLARRIRA Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REESF Contributions and distrbuton
EREERARNZTE Fquiy setted share-based transactions - - - - - - - 11,837 - 11,837
REERE ¥R Shares isued under share option scheme - - - - - - - 290 - 290
EHERERNBERERE 2013 final dhicend approved and paid - - - - - - - — M3 (0430
ERARDEH Transfe from retained profits - - - - - - 40,719 - {40719) -
ERDARFRALE Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - - - - - 0,719 8933 (245,083) (195,391)
R01UENE3NE At 31 December 2014 I (9,621) 161430 351,587 1186 - 5333 51532 1,899,950 2940117

Hizm(EE) ks S AKER &
2014 FIGR BFREHTE -
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No income tax effect arose from each component of other

comprehensive (loss) income in 2014.
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29. RESERVES (Continued)

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BOURR
BELARE
Transactions REEf  URER
RARERE ERERE  withnon- MERERE  EREE B BREGR
Capital ~ Remeasur- controlng  Exchange Investment  Property  —ME#% Sharebased  REEF
redemption ement interest  translation revaluation revaluaion  Gemeral  payment  Retained g
feseve  feseve  feseve feseve reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve profits Total
FE FE FE iz FEr iz FEr iz FEr FEr
Ussoo Ussoo Ussoo Uss oo Ussoo0 Usso00 Ussooo Ussvoo Ussvoo Ussoo0
R2015E151R At 1 January 2015 45 (9,621) 161,430 351,587 11,862 = 41333 51532 1899950 2,940,117
RERET Profitfor the year - - - - - - - — 25340 256340
Ap2E(FR WS Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERTERERE Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations = (9.926) = = = = = = = (9.926)
EREE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - (17963 - - - - - (11963
TREESHEELAEZRE  Fairvalue changes in avalable-for-
sale financial assets = = = = 5,560 = = = = 5,560
FERHETHLE Redlassfication adjustment reating
SRAEY to avalable-for-sle inancial
ERfBE assets lisposed of during the year - - - - (5,736) - - - - (5,736)
WERLHRNEE Surplus on revaluation of properties
BERS and prepaid ease payments - - - - - 2,026 - - - 2,026
EffER RN Effect of deferred tax of properties
REEEZELER and prepaid lease payments - - - - - (506) - - - (506)
A2 ECRE(EE) Total other comprehensive
WEEE (loss) income, net of tax - (9,926) - (11963 (176) 1520 - - - (188214)
AER2E(BR WEEE Total comprehensive
(loss) income for the year - (9,926) - (179632 (176) 1,520 - - 256,340 68,126
EANARRZRA Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REERE Contributions and dstribution
BREERNRNZTE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - - - - 9,089 - 9,089
RERRESHE TR Sharesissued under share option scheme - - - - - - - (127) - (127)
BREREE0UERERE 2014 inal dividend approved and paid - - - - - - - —  (200067)  (200,067)
ke Shares repurchased 1 - - - - - - - - 7
ERARTER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 13,754 - (13 -
EADARFRAEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company I = = = = = 13,754 8962 (213821)  (191,099)
R215E128318 At 31 December 2015 52 (19,547) 161,430 171,955 11,686 1,520 487,086 60494 1942469 2,817,145

2015 Annual Report F#§
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BZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

29. fEiE(E)

R4 R

BhELRFEIREREFHSEZA
FDEB B EE KT E AR R

fERFR M &AL ©

BEftERE
EfERBIRESTENBEF

REBNBEZEMRE  FHIIR

NERA TS ERMIE 3(Y)

BOBRRESERZHE

HAOBRRESRZFREETIRES
aJr—%E B R EBMNME QAR
HETEEHREEFMRL - &
BIRR &R e M BwR M 3(b) °

HNERERE

SN B R 2 R KRR TR B

RRAA BEINE R
HIBIIRREE

EZERBR

REBMHERE

REBHERBLIRES
LIRS HjEEﬁiFaAQﬁFA)L
MR - FIBEITRREZE
BEEE3() °
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29.

RESERVES (Continued)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 3(j) to the consolidated financial statements.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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30.

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

RESERVES (Continued)

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined
below) had or may have made to the Group.
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BZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

30. UESHEERDIGZRE(E)

EXQUREEERTUTALE

B -

(i) REANRHEMEBRARSERZE
FHFBUES  THRABHSR

EE :

(i) RAMEMBLAANERNES
(BIEEEITE S B IEHTT

Bx): R

(i) A K& EHM B D E R E R
M HlE - HER BER

RIE o

Br € N RIRR SR AL - & AT & R AEA
AAmlcHmERESSIMET 2
BERESRZRMHDEE TEBRAN
NEl ML ETEE A (B 2008
3A20B) 2B ETRMHI10% °
REEH EETHEERES
") BE % #E /122,158,500 0% (20174
4F 105,104,500 ) + #95BAK R 7]
REMBERRE TERETSE
B2 3Tl HM2.19% (2014 4F -

1.88%) °

FR2EE LRSI HEMBIERE
TAZANRSRETRB(BREETT
ERARITE 2 ERE)  EEFREKT
Bz 12@AAANFEBERTH
HRDHETERON1% - 2R1% 5

PR BV T /A% R RIBCR LA
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30.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option to:-

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20 March
2008). At the end of reporting period, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees and
director was 122,158,500 (2074 105,104,500), representing
2.19% (2014. 1.88%) of the shares of the Company in issue
at the time the Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the
Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to an individual in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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30.

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company's shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. The options will be vested either after five years from the
date of grant or immediate upon attainment of the retirement
age as specified in the Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option granted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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30.

NESREEROXN XS (E)

ERTFZEREFBRER2015F K
201412 A31HFERZES N

(Continued)

30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to the

Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December

T 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
il
RESE
Number of RITENBEREHE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE 1T
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2015 2014 HKS$
20083 H20H 11,760,000 4,864,000 4,864,000 928 2013%F3A21BZE
20 March 2008 2018%F3H20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
20094 H22H 26,688,000 14,030,000 14,380,000 9.38 2014%F4A23B&
22 April 2009 20194 H22H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
2010%F4H1H 15,044,000 12,079,000 12,443,000 18.57 2015%F4818Z%
1 April 2010 20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
2011 F4H12H 17,702,000 15,084,000 15,590,000 19.96 2016F4H12B=E
12 April 2011 202148118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
20126 4 A26H 9,700,000 8,868,000 9,170,000 20.54 2017F4H268=%
26 April 2012 20224 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 10,454,000 10,928,000 20.16 2018F5H27H=
27 May 2013 2023F5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014417 H 12,718,500 11,918,500 12,368,000 22.38 2019%F4H178 =%
17 April 2014 2024F4H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
2015%F 6 AS5H 17,054,000 17,054,000 — 16.22 2020F6HS5BHZE
5 June 2015 2025%F6 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
At
Total 122,158,500
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30. UBEREEROZINZRE(E) 30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
MR TTIE 2 BB AR RE R E hnAE g 1T Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
FEZEEHWT - weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2015 2014
hnEEF INkEF 15
THEE 1718
Weighted Weighted
average HBREZB average MEARIEZHE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
RE) At the beginning of year 17.65 79,743 16.21 77,173
RERITE Exercised during the year 9.38 (350) 9.78 (7,354)
RE AR Forfeited during the year 20.37 (2,096) 20.12 (2,795)
RERFH Granted during the year 16.22 17,054 22.38 12,719
REEAR At the end of the
reporting period 17.36 94,351 17.65 79,743
RITEB - FERFTE B RS RS H N e The weighted average share price at the date of share options
ERRE B 17.49 7T o (2014 4F - exercised during the year was HK$17.49 (2074: HK$21.82). The
21.8287) - EEEHAN - BFE number of share options vested during the reporting period was
6 4 B B8 % #E A% 202 11,997,000 11,997,000 (2074: 29,316,000).
(20144 : 29,316,000) °
M2015F 128318 Hk1TEE The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a weighted
R IMEEY#% TS 48 56.16 average remaining contractual life of 6.16 years (2074: 6.45
F(20144F : 6454 ) - PA4EE H - years). At the end of the reporting period, the number of
AT 47 {6 B R A 4 A% 202 53,620,000 exercisable options was 53,620,000 (2074: 41,973,000) with
(20147 : 41,973,000) » B 4 & weighted average exercise price of HK$15.86 (2074. HK$15.14).

H - B 7T (€AY 58 IR # J g F 1577
E18 %1586 7L (20144 : 15.14
HEor) e
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30.

NESREEROXN XS (E)

WREETER Y AAENEEE
2 SRR A% - X B R
HEREAET - BEHHEAR
5 0 R0 B B IR PR 2B AL 2 R
B AREZHEALREIBRT
W o HEBRA R ER R
BRI -

30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:

172

BTH ®¥H EREER BHREER
ZARE ZWH{E ZHE  FEHRE BHTEH  Expected
Fair value Share price fTfEE#%  Risk-free  Expected Expected  dividend
Grant date atgrantdate atgrantdate Exercise price interestrate  volatility life yield
200843 A20H Bik3.74 i 8.55 §h9.28 4.37% 40% 106 2.0%
20 March 2008 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$3.74 HK$8.55 HK$9.28
per share per share per share
2009444226 Bi3.34 BhR9.37 Bi9.38 251% 36% 106 2.0%
22 April 2009 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$3.34 HK$9.37 HK$9.38
per share per share per share
201064A18 Bik7.24 §h18.42 i 18.57 4.10% 33% 106 2.0%
01 April 2010 BT BT o 10 years
HK$7.24 HK$18.42 HK$18.57
per share per share per share
20114647126 B 7.61 §i19.88 §19.9 4.30% 31% 106 2.0%
12 April 2011 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.61 HK$19.88 HK$19.96
per share per share per share
201264 A26H BRR7.75 §z19.88 §k20.54 4.21% 34% 106 2.0%
26 April 2012 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.75 HK$19.88 HK$20.54
per share per share per share
201345A27H Bk7.17 B 20.05 §20.16 4.12% 26% 106 1.5%
27 May 2013 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.17 HK$20.05 HK$20.16
per share per share per share
20144647176 F8.30 B 22.06 §h22.38 4.93% 29% 106 2.0%
17 April 2014 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$8.30 HK$22.06 HK$22.38
per share per share per share
20156 A58 Fi4.90 F15.92 5 16.22 4.00% 25% 106 2.0%
5 June 2015 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$4.90 HK$15.92 HK$16.22
per share per share per share

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the last one year of
share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.

31. EERE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$000 US$°000
R Secured 92,403 82,994
EiE A Unsecured 2,357,162 2,545,760
2,449,565 2,628,754
BEEE The maturity of the interest-bearing
W EI B8R borrowings is as follows:
1ER Within one year 1,123,198 1,382,034
E2F In the second year 726,015 276,621
FIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive 600,352 970,099
(BEERE2F)
2,449,565 2,628,754
WO RRE A EIRD Portion classified as current liabilities (1,123,198) (1,382,034)
FERBE S Non-current portion 1,326,367 1,246,720
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$°000
RIBEBE KB EPTET IR Analysis of the amount due based on scheduled
BEZ BIER D #T payment dates set out in the loan agreements
(I 2B AE AT i 225k (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
BN (BB IE R L) demand clause) is as follow:
196K Within one year 1,033,198 1,282,050
F2F In the second year 816,015 286,605
EIFEESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BREER2F) 600,352 1,060,099
2,449,565 2,628,754
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31.
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings of US$90,000,000 (2074:
US$117,991,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.25% (2074 2.29%) per annum.

The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain
investment properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments with net carrying amount of approximately
US$154,498,000, US$86,618,000 and US$256,887,000 (2074:
USSNIl, US$129,942,000 and US$386,698,000 respectively)
respectively. The unsecured interest-bearing borrowings consist of
unsecured notes issued by the Company and unsecured bank loans
which are not pledged. Certain of the unsecured bank loans were
covered by several cross guarantee arrangements amongst the
Group's entities.

Unsecured notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$500,000,000 were issued by the Company on 20 June
2012 (the "US$ Notes”). The carrying value of the US$ Notes
at the end of the reporting period is US$497,852,000 (2074:
US$496,504,000) and is included in the interest-bearing
borrowings with maturity in the second year (2074: in the third
to fifth years). The US$ Notes bear interest from 20 June 2012 at
3.875% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 20 June
and 20 December of each year, beginning on 20 December 2012
and will mature on 20 June 2017.
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

On 6 August 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (the
“RMB Notes"”). The carrying amount of the RMB Notes at the
end of reporting period is US$152,852,000 and is included in
the interest-bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to the
fifth years. The RMB Notes bear interest from 6 August 2015 at
the rate of 4.375% per annum, payable annually in arrear on 6
August in each year, commencing on 6 August, 2016.

The RMB Notes and US$ Notes (collectively, the “Unsecured
Notes”) are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The fair value of the RMB Notes and US$ Notes as
at 31 December 2015, based on the quoted market price,
was US$149,770,000 and US$508,000,000 (2074: US$ Nil
and US$516,950,000) respectively. The Unsecured Notes are
the unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at
least equally with other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2074: None).
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type are as follows:

2015 2014
FET FET
Us$000 Us$'000
[&] 7E A1 &= At fixed rates 723,825 740,166
HEFE At floating rates 1,725,740 1,888,588
2,449,565 2,628,754
BEREENUTIERIIE The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$’000
AR RMB 505,862 465,791
E7T us$ 1,939,815 2,086,859
BT EUR 3,888 75,144
Hot JPY = 960
A% @M\Eﬂ D K T 2R B A Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
FEIE  RERE B mERM 39 discussion are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
SN statements.
32. BIGEAEMR 32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
REMNETE Defined contribution plans

176

AEBERAETE  FELAE
BE2NHRmFE - BEERAES
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BRI R EAR ZA&EF

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Towers Watson”). The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Towers Watson as at
31 December 2015 using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2015 2014
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$'000
REA At beginning of year 28,702 28,186
IRE Z RIS A AR Current service cost 2,718 2,892
B AR Interest expense 1,212 1,260
3,930 4,152
HiHE Remeasurements:
BBEHAEREE 2 Actuarial losses arising from changes
BEEX in financial assumptions 3,470 506
KHREEEL Actuarial losses (gains) arising from
BEEL (W) experience adjustments 9,759 (2,855)
13,229 (2,349)
[SEREET Benefit payment (1,597) (1,153)
JER AR Exchange differences (1,363) (134)
(2,960) (1,287)
REER At end of the reporting period 42,901 28,702
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32.

ETRAEEE)

SREBME (2)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

BEAENEEZ/RER The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2015 2014

% %

IR & Discount rate 2.85 4.25
T8 BR % BN -t Expected rate of salary increases 10.00 10.00

REEH RSEFTEZHEBRRNAE
BAREE B YR TEMNE T ZH8E
EOHmT

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014

RERNER AERMERE
ik -4 ME
BEME Change in RO Change in
Change in  defined benefit Changein  defined benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Frif % Discount rate +-0.5%  -3.45%/+3.65% +-0.5%  -3.46%/+3.67%
BEH R Expected rate of salary increases +-05%  +3.61%/-3.44% +-05%  +3.78%/-3.61%
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FRBBEANERESEEER
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The above sensitivity analyse is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses for the current and previous year.
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

is 7.23 years (2014: 7.37 years).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation

BEBRENE Under the plan, the Taiwan employees can be entitled to

retirement benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2015 2014
FET FEIT
Uss’000 USs$°000
1%R Within 1 year 2,862 379
BR1FER2FHN More than 1 year but within 2 years 4,079 2,426
HBRE2FERSEFNRN More than 2 years but within 5 years 11,073 7,082
#8385 F Over 5 years 79,819 67,916
97,833 77,803

33. EERE

AEBFRER AR BEZSHOT

33. DEFERRED TAXATION

liabilities was as follows:

The movement for the year in the Group's net deferred tax

2015 2014

FET FET

Uss$’000 Us$'000

REA At beginning of year 145,478 136,284

EH Z%E Exchange difference 1,354 (272)
MEARMESE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions of

BRI earnings by subsidiaries (7,032) (21,627)

ARG WK A Charge to consolidated income statement 32,499 31,093

FAEMEEmREA Charge to other comprehensive income 506 —

REER At end of the reporting period 172,805 145,478
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33, EABIAEE) 33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

NEER EPZEEHREESE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
FEaEmT reporting period represent the followings:
2015 2014
EE =K BE afi
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FETT FET FET FZET
Us$'000 Uss’o00o Us$’ooo Us$’000
DRI AT E Accelerated depreciation allowance — (65,747) — (56,230)
BRTATEITE Decelerated depreciation allowance 295 — 296 —
NAEFE : Fair value adjustment on:
— A4 — Prepaid lease payments and — (10,308) — (10,786)
wE property, plant and equipment
EI T
e
— B EE — Intangible asset — (6,638) — (6,826)
B 1R Impairment losses 16,034 — 13,424 —
REBER Un-invoiced accrual 13,614 — 17,156 —
ZTEIRER
HEWE - #32  Unrealised profit on property, 14,726 — 15,322 —
&L plant and equipment
RERME
MHEARZ Undistributed earnings of — (135,738) — (121,395)
RO EFE subsidiaries
s EE Tax losses 4,000 — 4,000 —
Ht Others 333 (3.376) 2,811 (3,250)
EEHEEE Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(&afE) 49,002 (221,807) 53,009 (198,487)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is provided on 50%
of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that are
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. The remaining
50% of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future
(the “Remaining Net Earnings”) would be subject to additional
taxation when they are distributed. Undistributed earnings of
the Group’s PRC associates and joint ventures are not subject to
withholding tax as these companies are held by a PRC subsidiary.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
Remaining Net Earnings were approximately US$192,467,000
(2014: US$171,092,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution to foreign investors would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.
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33. EEBIA(E)
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of US$16,000,000
(2014. US$16,000,000) had been recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry year of tax losses without
deferred tax assets provided at the end of the reporting date is as

M follows:
2015 2014
REEEIHRN FET F*T
Tax loss expiring in: Us$‘000 Uss’ooo
2015 = 56,835
2016 117,456 153,544
2017 76,946 85,601
2018 79,716 86,926
2019 154,042 124,082
2020 196,564 —
624,724 506,988
34, EAER 34. TRADE PAYABLES
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$‘000 Us$°000
AT ERRX Trade payables
F=5 To third parties 665,291 824,329
B AL To related parties
—ARRRIZEER — A group of companies jointly controlled
HRE LRz by the Company's directors and
it /NS their dependents 50,709 65,305
—ARRFIZES — Companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 A A the Company's directors 5,503 5,256
A& QA To joint ventures 785 1,241
722,288 896,131
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34. ERERR(E) 34. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)
ENE=F 2 EMNERAEE The trade payables to third parties are unsecured, interest-free
% B NHIA 30 & 60 X iE FHA M FE and with credit period of 30 to 60 days while the trade payables
EEBMATEEE AR ZENER to related parties and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
BEER . 2B RHNA30E0KE and with credit period of 30 to 90 days.
FRER o
ENERNGEERREEZERARGR The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
ERERDMTAN T ¢ the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2015 2014
FET FEIT
Uss$’000 Us$’000
0-90H 0 - 90 days 700,892 863,205
90 HIA k Over 90 days 21,396 32,926
722,288 896,131
TERBERA T EHIE - The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2015 2014
FET FET
Us$°000 Us$°000
AR RMB 718,789 894,264
e uss$ 307 1,241
el NTD 8 520
BA T EUR 3,059 106
= JPY 125 —
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35. HtEAREREKESE

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’o00o Us$°000
ElEe Deposits received in advance 333,419 354,982
B EERESER Accruals for transportation, promoting and
Z TR advertising expenses 318,647 367,595
THRERARAMKEER Accruals for administrative expenses and
2 FBIR other operating expenses 89,451 88,117
ENTIEREFE Salaries and welfare payables 120,147 113,699
FERTERAE R Payables for purchase of equipment 15,939 28,913
JE A —FEIRA S A 7] Payables to a related company for
ok EF purchase of properties 22,743 173,185
FEAT H AR IE Other tax payables 39,011 36,425
) D BRI R A HAME Obligations arising from put options
FrEEZEF on shares of subsidiaries written to
non-controlling shareholders 2,110 2,110
MESHBTA Derivative financial instruments — 314
Hth Others 66,767 68,132
1,008,234 1,233,472
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36. REXBMBRE 36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’000 Us$°000
B B¢ A4 A Profit before taxation 471,498 693,569
FEE MR Interest expenses 61,838 47,151
BN Interest income (45,643) (54,867)
weE Depreciation 534,078 454,136
SAFEEFETRAEE  Unfunded employee benefit obligations paid (1,597) (1,153)
T 0 A 495 B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 16,051 8,604
B EECEE Amortisation of intangible asset 754 753
HEME - KRR Loss on disposal of property,
R EE plant and equipment 13,761 3,777
E R =B Impairment loss on property,
WIEEE plant and equipment 25,902 —
BEAnBEEIER Change in fair value of financial assets or
TEREEEEMNESHMEE  finandal liabilities at fair value through
HEMBEARBEZEE)  profitorloss 7,514 (288)
PTEemIARARAE Change in fair value of derivative
28 financial instruments (314) (6,579)
HERAREBEETIRR (Gain) Loss on disposal of financial assets
EIESREEMNSRIEE  at fair value through profit or loss
2 (e B8 (872) 213
HEAHEECHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Z W= financial assets (5,736) —
HE—EMB AR ZI8%k  Loss on disposal of a subsidiary — 1,863
FE(REE = AR & Share of results of associates and
BENEIEE joint ventures (11,282) (7,269)
EXBE) 8 Effect on exchange rate changes 37,492 7,123
RINAE a5 E D Recognition of equity-settled
T2 FIE share-based payment 9,089 11,837
H3EmENE E 2 18 i Increase in other non-current assets (15,400) —
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36. ,,@%%ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ"%fﬁﬁ(ég) 36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)
2015 2014
FET FZET
Uss’o00o Us$°000
FEZRD Decrease in inventories 28,889 73,768
PR BR 3R 2 (38 00) (Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (5,962) 16,403
TERFBBREMBEUWFIE  Decrease (Increase) in prepayments and
2R (3Em) other receivables 104,468 (69,556)
S ERFRZ R Decrease in trade payables (133,227) (323,686)
E A FE A 5RIE K Decrease in other payables and
JEWET & 2 B deposits received (94,194) (93,999)
FEFEEMFEZEMCEL)  Increase (Decrease) in advance
payments from customers 27,213 (5,425)
HEM3EmBasE /> Decrease in other non-current liabilities — (262)
KB TEFMEMTIRME  Increase in present value of
il unfunded employee benefit obligations 3,930 4,152
REXBABRE Cash generated from operations 1,028,250 760,265
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

of the Group's business.

HZE2015%F 128310 LFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions in the ordinary course

11
2015 2014
st FET FET
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
(a) AT ZRE (a) Related party transactions
T AREEER Sales of goods to:
ERBIZEERE Companies controlled by a substantial
2 A A YNE] shareholder of the Company (i) 26,669 23,745
YN Associates 24,551 21,868
E-YNG Joint ventures 44,435 33,728
BTRIARBEEM Purchases of goods from:
ERBICESER A group of companies jointly controlled
HR B LR by the Company's directors and
2 —HN7E] their dependents (i) 477,029 476,750
ER-WNL] Joint ventures 5,164 6,677
BT ARRER Administrative expenses paid
WEHITHER : on behalf and received from:
ARRlzEERHBE A company jointly controlled by
HEES 2 —BRF the Company's directors and
their dependents 292 14,846
RERH Joint ventures 9,575 12,045
ETHATEA Acquisition of property, plant and
¥ - BERRE equipment and prepaid
Mt BLEE lease payments from:
KRRl EF—% A company beneficially owned by one of
EEERHER the Company's directors
7 —EAF = 534,635

Hret() BRIBE ETRBE14AE - ZEHR

BHBMALZR ST RFERE

%5 -

2015 Annual Report F#§

Note () These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

187



e MK ERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F 128318 ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

37. EEMBALICEARZ(E) 37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) BREEAEBZHME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
NEBBEBEEAEZHNS Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BIEEE MBS RENFE100T including amounts paid to the Company's directors, chief
BERARRES @ 1THEX executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
YRNZRBEERAEFESEHE as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
BXffzFmE)mT : statements, is as follows:

2015 2014

FET FET

Uss$000 Us$’000

EEHE Directors’ fees 630 630
FehEMmiie Salaries and other emoluments 9,468 7,691
LARRAD 250 2 518 Share-based payments 5,033 4,633
TEAL Discretionary bonuses 593 1,480
RRREST B 50 Retirement scheme contribution — 13
15,724 14,447
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HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

2015 2014

FET FET

Us$000 Us$’000

BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 2,449,565 2,628,754
B IR NIReEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,023,700) (1,183,103)
ARG Net debt 1,425,865 1,445,651

ENNCIl St Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 2,909,059 3,033,557

R EEE AR X Gearing ratio 49.01% 47.66%

AEERELBERAOLE - FB
BRERER NP &R R
BRRBERE - BHBREREITH
B BREHRS REREEARR
B i AEEHLEEEMS L
BITWERME - BRHE AR X
RIREHE -

AEBER205FNRBTE - R
2014F —2 - AEBEZ BRREAERK
FRBEREAE -

AEBEHNBRTHERETE TR
TR B T R
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, share repurchase and issue of
new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market, future
capital expenditures and investment opportunities are taken into
consideration.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2014, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.

Some of the Group's banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.
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39.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, available-for-sale financial assets
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company on its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of the interest
rates between Renminbi and the US dollars and the Group itself,
the Group has adjusted its financing strategy since September
2015 to increase the PRC subsidiaries’ proportion of onshore
financing and to reduce their foreign currencies financing.
Particularly, the Group entered into a number of IRS and CCS
arrangement during the reporting period to mitigate the exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from the RMB Notes issued by the
Company. The Group expects to increase its Renminbi borrowing,
and the proportion of Renminbi borrowing of the Group’s total
borrowings will be increased gradually.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Details of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 are set out in notes 21, 22, 26, 31 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of
RMB/US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened
by 7.5%, 3% and 2.5% respectively (20714: 3.2%, 3% and
12% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
US$37,488,000 (2014 US$69,421,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2014.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates and fixed interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. For interest-bearing borrowings,
the Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate
exposure and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings
in consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

The Group has entered into a number of CCS and IRS
arrangements which have the economic effect of converting
certain fixed rate interest bearing notes with notional amounts
totaling RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$160,803,000
(2014: US$Nil) into floating rate borrowings demonimated in
US$ and simultaneously converting notional amounts totaling
US$80,000,000 (2074: US$ Nil) into fixed rate borrowings as
further detailed in note 22(a) above. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group's borrowing at fixed rate of interest was 30%
(2014: 28%) and 26% (2014 28 %) upon taken into consideration
the effects of the IRS and CCS.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 75
(2014: 50) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by US$5,961,000 (2074: decrease/
increase by US$3,673,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 75 (2074:
50) basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2014.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the
Group’s pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other receivables arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

260 L
15R5 1EBE BHESER
REREN {BE2FER  More than
Within More than 2 years
1 year 1 year but
oron  but within less than &5t
demand 2 years 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000
R2015F At 31 December 2015
12H31H
e BRN Trade payables 722,288 - - 722,288
HAh R & Other payables and deposits received
Bl E 846,966 - = 846,966
AL EZE  Obligations arising from put options
FORHMERTES  on shares of subsidiaries written to
BT non-controlling shareholders 2,110 - - 2,110
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,173,892 753,445 615,090 2,542,427
CCSKIRSZZHE  CCSand IRS arrangements
(FE#E) (net settled) (3.427) (3.427) (1,549) (8,403)
2,741,829 750,018 613,541 4,105,388
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39. SRAKBEE(E) 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
TRBESRR(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

1F R 1A 2F A F
BEXER BIE2FA {B7E5F R
Within More than More than

1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but within but less ai
demand 2 years  than 5 years Total
FET FET FET T
Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$000 Us$000
20144 At 31 December 2014
12A31H
EfTER R Trade payables 896,131 — — 896,131
H A e 50 &% Other payables and deposits received
Bl 1,080,924 — — 1,080,924
AOEEZE  Obligations arising from put options
FULEREFTES  on shares of subsidiaries written to
ZEE non-controlling shareholders 2,110 — — 2,110
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 314 — — 314
BEEBE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,428,928 306,376 994,326 2,729,630
3,408,407 306,376 994,326 4,709,109
B eE KB TERAREE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that includes a
EHEBR TN EEAERERKREE clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
WK BEEESBERE D W loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket. In
BEREAKREREH |ER BT this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of U$$90,000,000 (2074:
EEYATBEHEEASTHEEE US$117,991,000) as at the end of the financial period have been
K8 R #h 8 F1) - 90,000,000 TT so classified even though the directors do not expect that the
(2014 : 117,991,000 ;7 ) A 45 & lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus
HEek it AR 8EE Z2ZEES0 these borrowings would be repaid according to the following
RKBERGEERERROT ¢ schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
2015 2014
FET FET
Uss$000 Uss’ooo
BERE Interest-bearing borrowings
156/ Within 1 year 1,550 20,193
F2F In the second year 90,769 11,535
EIFZFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BHEER2F) = 90,728
92,319 122,456
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40.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair value
in these consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis at 31 December 2015 across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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40. AREEE(E) 40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) UAAEBEIENEREERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&) (Continued)
2015 2014
fE1 HE2 BRI @ | &R &R &RI3 it
Level1  Level2  Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FErn Tz FExr  TEr | TEAT  TET TEL FEX
US$000  USS000  USS000  USS000 | USS000  USS000  US$000  USS000

EE Assets

JHAEZ Available-for-sale

-REES - Investment funds — 12886 60282 73,168 — 2495 50,708 75,664
—3E EMRARE S - Unlisted equity securities - — 15600 15,600 - - - -

A BIESE R Financial assets at faivalue
EEEFEE  though profit or oss

HEBEE
— bz A - Listed equity securities - — - - 232 - - 233
— 12,886 75882 88,768 2352 2495 50,708 78,016
af Liabilities

BARBESE  Financial Liabilities at fair value
E2@RE through profit or loss

~3EETE AR - Derivatives not
TEMMETR  designated as

hedging instruments = 9,080 = 9,080 — — — —
EMEMFER  Other payables and
2l ¢iika deposits received
—{TESBIA - Derivative financial instruments — — — - — — 314 314
= 9,080 = 9,080 — - 314 314
R2015F F2014FEE R - 38 During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there
BEABESAMIELR2ZH were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
BE . R EEBEBEZELR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
3KAMARRI3EH - value measurements.

2015 Annual Report F#§ 197



e MK ERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BENEE) 40.
UAREBEIENEREERE
&(E)

MR 20154 & 2014 F KN & F 5
ERARBEFEDEARAIZH

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value

SFAREEEHT hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
are shown as follows:
2015 2014
FLEm
RAEE (TEERIA fTEemIA
REES Unlisted  Derivative RERS Derivative
Investment equity financial Investment financial
funds securities  instruments funds instruments
FET FET FET FET FET
Us$000 Us$000 Uss’000 Us$000 Uss 000
RE At beginning of the year 50,708 — (314) 21,275 (6,893)
BA Purchases 8,976 15,600 — 24,000 —
& Disposal (1,781) - - — —
BRI Bls Total gains or (losses)
% (F#8) recognised:
-B& ~in profit or loss - — 314 — 6,579
-EM2E%E - inother comprehensive income 2,379 — — 5,433 —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 60,282 15,600 — 50,708 (314)
@BUEE(EX) Total gain or (losses) for
KEEHEHM  the year reclassified from
RAWBEEHIE  other comprehensive
income on disposals 781 = = — —
REERIBEZEE Change in unrealised gain for
REETABEMN  the year included in profit or
EHARERWE 2 loss for assets and liabilities
B8 held at the end of
the reporting period — — — — 6,579
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(@

Available-for-sale: Investment funds

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets comprise
1(2014: 1) and 4 (2014: 4) investment funds which
are categorised as Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the year ended 31 December 2015
respectively. The fair value of an investment fund in
Level 2 is valued based on the net asset value of each
trust unit quoted by the trust administrator based on
quoted prices of underlying investments i.e. listed
equity and debt securities in an active market without
adjustments.

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2074:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques, including mainly price/earnings (P/E)
multiple model, price/sales (P/S) multiple model and
discounted cash flows model. In determining the fair
value of unlisted investments, it includes assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The expected annual growth rates of unquoted
companies invested by the funds ranging from 0% to
71% (2014: 0% to 45%), average price/earnings (P/E)
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40.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in

Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

()

(ir)

(i)

Available-for-sale: Investment funds (Continued)

and average price/sales (P/S) multiples of comparable
companies of the corresponding industries ranging
from 12.6 to 54.0 times (2014: 0.7 to 51.2 times)
and 0.8 to 5.2 times (2074 none) respectively and
discount rates of 3% (2074: 3%) are used.

Available-for-sale. Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 newly invested in current year are determined by the
investment manager using price/sales (P/S) multiple
model. In determining the fair value of the unlisted
equity securities, it includes assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or rates,
including expected annual growth rates of 34% and
comparable companies’ average P/S multiples of 5.2
times.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The fair values of IRS and CCS contracts, which are
categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
determined based on the present value of the
estimated cash flows based on the terms and maturity
of each contract, taking into account the current
interest rates, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves.

Rtz ERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FREMEIMEKMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. AREEE(E) 40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) URAABEIENESREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&#E) (Continued)
FELRTERGARBE BT Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
LRI3ARBEAEZFTENTE The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
Rig N\GURE 2 BN - for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MMEBER
FEEARE
A2 EkE
EE
Impact on fair
R=2-1% TUBERBANERY value and the
tZB=t-H MEENSRE Group's other
ZARE (BREMEZRETE) comprehensive
Fair value at 31 Sensitivity of fair income for
December 2015 fEH 1 value to changes in RENTREE the year
i3 FZT Valuation FUBEZEA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably FET
Description Us5000 techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range Us§000
ARLESHER
Available-for-sale financial assets
KRS 6028 MEKEFE EREHERE FERBEREES +-10% +-283
EDpfEdE R2AR:
Investment funds PIE multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
AR AHRAAz HImREES +-2% +-190
MR ERRBEMS  R2AR:
Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
RRBER  ARX FREHS  HRrEE +-1% 126/+131
ctid] HE - R -
Discounted Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value and
cash flow vice versa.
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40. DAREEFEE) 40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) UAABHEIENSEMEERA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&(E) (Continued)
FTEROUHETGARBEZETH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(&) inputs (Continued)
MEBER
FREREE
A2 EkE
EE S
Impact on fair
R=%-1% FUREBANELY value and the
tZA=t-H MEBEHGRE Group's other
ZARfE (RREMEZRETE) comprehensive
Fair value at 31 Sensitivity of fair income for
December 2015 fAEH G value to changes in RENTREE the year
i3 FET Valuation TABREA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably F£r
Description Us5000  techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range Uss000
HERE BHEARE HRRBEMR RO +5% +-230
P/S multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
ARRAFATHATE THRLAL THHHE +6% +-344
X ERMALEE R
Average P/S ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
kLHRAES mHERE BHEERE FEAENEREEREER +5% +-554
HRREENS RO -
Unlisted equity securities 15,600 P/S multiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
IRATNTATEE  TUAANTETEELS ARABEER R +1-10% #1436

Average P/S ratio of Ji:
comparable companies  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice versa;
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40. AREEFEE) 40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) URAABEIENESREERS (@) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&E(E) (Continued)
FEFOUEBRGARBEZETH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(42) inputs (Continued)
MMEBER
FEEARE
A2 EkE
R
Impact on fair
RZZ-mE FIBRBANERY value and the
tZR=t-H MEEHREE Group's other
ZARE (BREMRERETE) comprehensive
Fair value at 31 Sensitivity of fair income for
December 2014 fAEH 1 value to changes in RENTREE the year
i FET Valuation FTEZEA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably F£r
Description Us5000  techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range Us§000
AtHESHERE
Avalable-for-sale financial assets
hEEe 50708 MRXER EEREKHRE ERRRERLZNS +-10% +-1,051
HRAEER - R
Investment funds PIE multiple Expected annual growth ~ The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
ALFARL ELEEPASEL RS R +-26% +1-3975
THhRE A EEES  ReTE:
Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
bk xS e ERrEE 1% - 1114116
&H A R -
Discounted cash ~~ Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value and
flow vice versa.
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40.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the Group uses market
observable-data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group obtains the valuations
provided by the respective investment managers or trust
administrator for the investment funds.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.
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40. DREEFEE) 40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b) HUAABEMUNIIIENERIALD (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
REE other than fair value
EERE BTREETER In the opinion of the directors, except for the Unsecured
M s mIKwmE Notes as described in the note 31 to the consolidated
BN REBSRBEHEMESS financial statements, no other financial assets and liabilities
MEENEBECERE HE of the Group are carried at amount materially different from
20154 K2014E12 831 H their fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

ZRRBEEERER -

41, &E 41 COMMITMENTS
BRIANGEEMBERREMIBHE In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
ZHEYE - REBB THIEE the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the

commitments as follow:

(a) BARZHEIE (a) Capital expenditure commitments

2015 2014

FET F#ET

BETHE R Contracted but not provided for: US$°000 US$'000
BEMER Expenditures on properties,

B plant and equipment 147,768 280,056

REHES Investment funds 27,789 28,026

175,557 308,082
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4. EEE) a1
(b) “EREHRE
FEEE B AN

REEHR - RETATHEE &
BHY AEEARKERE
R EREHIRIT

COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which are payable as follows:

2015 2014
FET FET
Uss‘000 Uss$’000
1R Within one year 39,779 47,235
MRE2FEES5FEm In the second to fifth years inclusive
(BEEERE29F) 77,724 75,865
5 F A& After five years 29,817 42,214
147,320 165,314
FEFLEHFAA The Group as lessor

AEERERLREEHER
THREMEEE - FHELD
HR2E3FERARNREHNE
HART AT A A0 BT IR o ER
TR EEHO - BERE
ZRNEES 2 REBRD TS

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties
under operating leases with average lease terms of 2-3 years
and with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new
terms. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2015 2014

FET FET

Uss$‘000 Us$°000

15K Within one year 3,793 -
RE2FEESFEm In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BREER2%) 6,440 —

10,233 —
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REFRTXZENEL X2
B IR LURERE B X BB R
FHEFRREF

REEEIR » 42,721,000% 7T(2014
F 1 73,017,000 7T ) K& # 42 E1l
EERRARBER - #BZE2015412 A
31 HIE - REEHF 201522016 4F
FITEAIRTRE B A S MR IEHERN S
¥ ¥ #131,279,0003 JT(2014 4 -
20152 2016 /& 70,000,000 %) °

43. FRFRZBBMRRE

RIRE B D FIAH B AR BT
B AARAYMBERRREEZ
SEHIIRMT -
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42,

43,

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2014, the Group announced a voluntary retirement plan (the
“Plan”) for its employees as a result of an integration programme
of its Pepsi beverage business. The Group has made an offer of
the Plan to the affected employees who can decide to accept
the offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of their
employments.

The termination benefits of US$42,721,000 (2074:
US$73,017,000) have been recognised as expenses during the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2015, the estimated possible
obligation of termination benefits is approximately US$31,279,000
in 2016 (2074 US$70,000,000 between 2015 and 2016).

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the
Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2015 2014
Kt FET FZET
Note Us$’000 Us$°000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y% - BB &R Property, plant and equipment 70 101
BB A Bl R Interest in subsidiaries 1,291,096 1,189,293
A HE 2B EE  Available-for-sale financial assets 63,080 53,506
1,354,246 1,242,900
REEE Current assets
WAREMEYIER  Financial assets at fair value through
NIRRT profit or loss — 2,352
TETFIB R FEYGRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 1,302 371
MIE AR ZEFIE  Amount due from a subsidiary 430,000 310,000
RITEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 16,422 54,298
447,724 367,021
wEE Total assets 1,801,970 1,609,921
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43. Z'S’L\\E_lZﬂji‘%Hﬁ/R%%Cf/g) 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
2015 2014
Wizt FET FET
Note Us$’000 US$°000
BRRERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
&7 R 4 Capital and reserves
EARRA Issued capital 28,014 28,019
f&19 i 8 Share premium 63,900 65,421
E Reserves 43(a) 183,708 251,689
FEY VN Total equity 275,622 345,129
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
EAREE Financial liabilities at fair value
RS RAE through profit or loss 9,080 -
REABEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 1,120,704 876,504
BETREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 21,669 15,045
1,151,453 891,549
nEBAE Current liabilities
FEATBRSK Trade payables - 520
Hofth FE A 3K Other payables 9,895 11,763
BEEE Current portion of interest-bearing
BIHAER 5> borrowings 365,000 360,960
374,895 373,243
N =R Total liabilities 1,526,348 1,264,792
BRAREE Total equity and liabilities 1,801,970 1,609,921

MR2016F3AN2AKESEEeHENR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

BERTE  WHANTATIRERS March 2016 and sign on its behalf by
FHEM Wei Ing-Chou H# H4E— BB Junichiro Ida
ZEF Director & Director
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) ftE<2H (@) Movements of the reserves
R EE MEBRE REEME BRERE
e EftERRE fife ffa Share-
Capital Remeasur-  Exchange Investment based ~ RE&EF
redemption ement translation revaluation  payment  Retained a8
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  Profits Total
FEr FET FEr FET & FERL FEn
Uss0o0  USS000  USS000 - USS000 - USS000  USS000 - US$000
201451818 At 1 January 2014 45 (6,535) (363) 821 42599 207421 243,988
RERRA Profit for the year - - - - - 197,708 197,708
TEEZENE Other comprehensive income (loss)

(BR) #5: for the year - (135) 8 5,433 - - 5,384
BaiEROHI T HE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 11837 - 11837
REBREERTZRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (2,904) - (2,904)
BHERIEZ2013FRMRE 2013 final dividend approved and paid - - - - —(204324)  (204,324)
12014124318 At 31 December 2014 45 (6,670) 277) 6,254 51,532 200,805 251,689
#2015%151R At 1 January 2015 45 (6,670) (277) 6,254 51,532 200,805 251,689
REREH Profit for the year = = = = - 128460 128,460
TEERENE Other comprehensive income (loss)

(BR) #5: for the year = (6,763) (178) 1,598 = - (538)
EEEERA 23R Fquity settled share-based transactions = = = = 9,089 = 9,089
RIEERE BT 2R Shares issued under share option scheme — — — — (127) — (127)
EIERKE014FRERS 2014 final dividend approved and paid - - - - - (200,067)  (200,067)
et Share repurchased 7 = = = = = 7
R2015F12 4318 At 31 December 2015 52 (13433) (455) 7,852 60,494 129,198 183,708

MR2015F12831H AR AAD
Rz EEREREB &N MG EE
2 % %8 /193,098,000 t(2074
F 1 266,226,000 7T )

2015 Annual Report F#§

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
US$193,098,000 (2074: US$266,226,000).
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44. FEWBATE 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
THBEANAT EELEE The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
BEZIEWB AR, EERA indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
RENRHAREERFZEEKX are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
B, AR AN EBBEENE portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
B o EER AN H M giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
BRARINERGERFRILE excess length.
EmEL/
=E Sk
Place of HMER/TEITRA PR IR AELL B
&8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TREK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
H# GiE
Directly Indirectly
FREE A ER BBV ERAF KBRS Uss$2 100% — REERK
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRERERAT HE US$72,000,000 — 100% BUEREEHFEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EMNERRMERA HE US$31,000,000 — 100% BERHESRE
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* MMNEERmARA i US$151,500,000 — 100% HERHEFRE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EEFERRmARA HE US$22,000,000 — 100% BUERHEHEME
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EHEGRRERAF sl US$17,000,000 — 100% BUEREEHEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
REERERBRATA HE US$17,800,000 — 100% BUERAEHEE
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant noodles
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44. EEB{TE n _](, ) 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
AR
EEHEY
Place of HMER BRIRE LR AELL
£ incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B B
Directly Indirectly
AZERRmERAT il US$44,300,000 — 100% BUERHESEE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BREERMARAT H US$5,000,000 — 100% BHEREEHEE
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RAREZRMBRAR HE US$11,200,000 - 100% BUERHEHER
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BREGRMAERAT HE US$4,500,000 — 100% BUEREEHFEE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* MEEGERRARAF Sl US$3,000,000 — 100% BERHESEE
* X|nJ|ang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* ARERRRERAT Gl US$14,000,000 — 100% BUERHESEE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* RENE(FS) FERRERAT Gl US$6,000,000 — 100% BUERHEH(EE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale
Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* KEHERERRAERAE FE Us$17,000,000 — 100% BUERHERFER
* Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* REE(ZE)FRRRERA HE US$5,000,000 — 100% BHEREEHFEE
* Master Kong (Chongging) Convement Food PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
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44. EEM‘]‘E’L\\EC@E 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ERARL
EEHEY
Place of HEMEX TRITRA LR
£ incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Hi# Gk
Directly Indirectly
* FEBEA)FEERERAF Gl US$32,500,000 — 100% BUERHEHEE
* Master Kong (Kunming) Convenient Food PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* BNEHRRERAA HE US$50,000,000 — 100% BUEREEHEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
B EERE (PE)BRAF HiE US$227,500,000 100% —  REER
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

FRAEESFBY) BRAR EBRAHS Us$1 100% —  REAER
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RAEFERRRE (RE) AR HE US$98,900,000 — 100%  RAER
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

REEERMERAT Gl US$37,000,000 — 100% BUEREEHRRR
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food
MMEERRERAR HE US$18,400,000 — 100% HEREEAERR
Hangzhou Ting Yuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant food

REAES R BV)BRAR RERAHS US$55,263 90.50% —  REEK
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
FOBHRmERERAR HEHs US$10,528 - 4751%  REER
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* REEERMARAF HE US$60,840,000 — 4751% RERHESR
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BMEERMERAT HE US$20,000,000 — 4751% BERHEESR
Guangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

212 et r21350R8 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



4. FEMBRAT(E

FREMEIMEKMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2015F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

M,
EEME
Place of HMER BRIRE PB4 R AELL 1
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B %
Directly Indirectly
* MMERRAERAR il US$38,100,000 — 4751%  SHERBEHRR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* B (M) RRERAR Gl US$28,350,000 — 4751% BHERBEEHRD
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd* ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RERRRMARAF HE US$73,500,000 - 4751% BEREERSD
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EFERRMAERAT HE US$24,000,000 — 4751% BERBEERD
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BERERRGARAR i US$15,000,000 — 4751% BERBEEHRR
* Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BRERRAERAF il US$13,700,000 — 4751% BERHEESR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RRERERABRAF Gl US$33,000,000 — 4751% SHERBEHRR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RRERRMERAA I US$12,000,000 — 4751%  BEREERR
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNERRmERAF HE US$24,000,000 - 47.51% BUERHERS
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* WNEERRERAF i US$16,000,000 — 4751% BERBEERD
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
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4. TEMBAT(E

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ERARL
EEME
Place of HEMEX TRITRA PB4 R RE L 1
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Hi# &
Directly Indirectly
* BN (RS KB ARAR Sl US$41,000,000 — 4751% SERBEERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* FRENE (AR) RmABRA Gl US$48,500,000 — 4751% BHERBEEHRD
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RENE(RR)RRBERAR HE US$31,800,000 — 4751% BHERBEERD
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEERBERAF HE US$36,500,000 — 4751% BERBEERD
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BMERRRERAR HE US$59,300,000 — 4751% BERHEEHRR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* KBERRAERAF i US$23,500,000 — 4751% BERHEERR
* Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EIB(SEAB)RRERAF il US$12,000,000 — 4751% BERHEEHRR
* Master Kong (Wulumugji) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BEERRGERAF HE US$12,000,000 — 4751% BHERBEEHRD
* Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BHEEZRRERAT HE US$28,500,000 — 4751% BERBEERD
Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEERMERAF HE US$41,500,000 — 4751% BERBEERD
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
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44. EEB{?E’L\\E](@E 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
M,
EEME
Place of HMER BRIRE PB4 R AELL 1
£ incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B %
Directly Indirectly
* HEEERMERAT il US$14,000,000 — 4751%  SHERBEHRR
* Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ROBRRRE (PE)ERRF HE US$133,977,000 — 4751%  REER
Master Kong Beverage Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd

hEERCE(BB)BRAR 5k Us$2 - 4751%  REER
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
* AE(PEDREBRRA HE US$358,216,517 — 4751%  REER
* PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited PRC Investment holding
* AEHEHEMN)BRAF Gl US$197,800,000 — 4751%  BUEREERM
* PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

* BENAETERHBRAR Sl US$66,650,000 — 4751% BERBEERR

* Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages

* ERAFUERKBRAT HE US$14,119,449 — 30.88% HERHERM

* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

* REAZULHNBRAR HE US$20,000,000 — 27.32% BUERHERD

* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages

* REBEUERHNERAR HE RMB100,000,000 — 4181% BEREERD

* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

* RABEERHAERDA HE US$6,600,000 — 3326% BUERBESRR
* Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

* BNBERHERAR HE US$1,350,000 — 4751% RERBEEHRR
* Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

* BEAERAHRHBRAR Gl US$ 17,845,000 — 44.85% BERHEEHRR
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
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44, FEWEB QT (,fé’; 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ERARL
EEME
Place of HEMEX TRITRA PB4 R RE L 1
£ incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Hi# &
Directly Indirectly
* RIEFTERKBRAT HE US$12,250,000 — 4751% BUERHERM
* Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RREREIESHARLF I US$35,000,000 — 4751% BERBEERR
* Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BHBEUERHNERAR HE US$57,600,000 - 4751% REREERSD
* Shenyang Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* RYAEUERHERAT HE US$28,000,000 — 4751% BHERUHESRR
* Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company PRC Manufacture and sale
Limited * of beverages
* BMBEETERHBRAR Sl RMB19,764,000 — 4751% BERHEESR
* Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BESRK(BE)BRRF HE US$9,000,000 — 3326% HEREERS
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
TEA(BV)BRAF RRELHES US$1,000 100% — REER
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
JBR(FAEs) ERERAR Heis US$2,118,334 — 50.01% &®EEK
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp Cayman Islands Investment holding
HEERMRERAR HE US$5,000,000 — 50.01%  REWRRS
Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
A% (RBRIS) ERERLF RERLRE US$50,000 100% — FEEZRERE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co., Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales

agent for the Group
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44. EEB{?E’L\\E(%E 44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
AR
EEHEY
Place of HMER BRIRE LR AELL
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEEK
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B B
Directly Indirectly
EBREBRAF ERRUEHE US$147,232,000 — 100% REER
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
FRIERERER A EBRAES Us$1 100% —  REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
HEeREREHEERAR hE US$135,000,000 — 100% HREDEEERE
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao PRC Provision of properties
Real Estate Co., Ltd. * management service
REREEAERAT Gl US$200,000 100% —  RUEERHB
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of
management services
* ZENBEN AR ABA L A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
(ED 2 o companies.
# HYEEQ S # English translation for identification purposes only.
HMAEFBRTRERN KB AT The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as
HR I REM AR BN E - wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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BBETEEE 185
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T35 1 (852) 2511 1911
{5H : (852) 2511 7911
BT E : info@tingyi.com
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www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi
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REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
No.1688, Wuzhong Road

Minhang District

Shanghai City 201103

PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

WEBSITE
www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

PLACE OF LISTING OF SHARES AND TRADING CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Security code: 0322

ADR Level 1 Programme
Symbol: TCYMY

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.
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Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

Mr. Koji Shinohara

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Shanghai

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank AG Member of UniCredit Groups
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
China Merchants Bank

CITI Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.
Development Bank of Singapore

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Rabobank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd
Westpac Banking Corporation

LEGAL ADVISERS
Sidley Austin

as to PRC law:

King & Wood Mallesons
Beijing Kangda Law Firm
Yingke Law Firm

as to Cayman Islands law:
Maples and Calder

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Incorporated in Cayman islands with limited liability
Stock Code: FEH#wmo%E: 0322

*{E {38 5] For identification purposes only
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